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Policy: Financial Assistance (Charity Care,
Expanded Charity Care, & Uninsured Discount)

PURPOSE

Chapters Health System is a nonprofit and consistent with the organization's mission. Chapters offers
Charity Care to qualifying indigent patients with an inability to pay for hospice and other rendered
services. To define eligibility, application, and approval processes for Financial Assistance (Charity Care,
Expanded Charity Care, & Uninsurad Discount) offered to underinsured, uninsured, and medically
indigent patients who indicate an inabillity to pay for services rendered by Chapters Health System &
Chapters Health System Affiliates.

DEFINITION{S)

Charity Care:

Medical treatment provided to patients who are uninsured or underinsured and who cannot afford to pay
for the care according to guidelines of this policy. Charity Care does not include bad debt or contractual
allowances from government programs and insurance or uninsured patient discounts, but may include
insurance co-payments or deductibles, or both. The patient will have no obligation, or a discounted
obligation, to pay for any services received which are deemed to be community care in accordance with
this guideline.

Charity Care represents medical services provided to a person for which the Organization has no
expectation of receiving full payment. Charity Care may inciude all or a portion of the patient's balance.

The Organization will establish and censistently apply objective criteria 1o identify a medically indigent
patient and astablish the amount of charity care discounts in the manner most responsible 1o the needs
of the community and the organization's leng-term ability to fulfill ts mission, as well as in compliance
with IRS and other applicable rules and guidelines. Charity Care will be recognized separately from bad
debt. A person who does not have the means to meet hisiher financial obligation asscciated with hisfher
medical expenses is generally deemed to be medically indigent. The term medically indigent includes
persons whose income is sufficient to pay for basic living expenses but who does not have adequate
funds to pay for unexpected and/or large medical bills. Charity Care will be determined based upon
family size and household income in accerdance with the current years published “Federal Poverty
Guidelines” located at on the Health and Human Services website (see reference section below for link
to website).

Charity Care:

A patient is eligible for Charity Care if the patient is between 0 — 200% of the Federal Poverty Guidelings.
Expanded Charity Care (ECC):

A patient is eligible for Expanded Charity Care if the patient is within the Federal Poverty Guidelines of
201 — 300%.

Uninsured Discount:

An Uninsured Discount is limited to patients who have no third party {insurance coverage) source of
payment or do not qualify for Charity Care, Expanded Charity Care, or Medicaid. A patient is eligible if
they within the Federal Poverty Guidelines of 301 — 350%.

Federal Poverly Guidelines {FPG):
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11 Cal. Cade Reg. Section 999.5(d 1

A description and copy of all current contracts between the applicant and the
city in which the applicant is located and current contracts between the
applicant and the county in which the applicant is located for each healih facility
ihat provides similar health care that ave the subject of the agreement

or transaclion

or facilit

Attached to this Scction are the following:
. A copy of the Participating Provider Medical Scrvices Agreement between
Alameda Alliance and Hospice Fast Bay

. A copy of the Purchase of Services Contract Between Contra Costa County and
Hospice Bast Bay
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Allianc

Health care you can count on.
Serice you can trust,

MEDICAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Participating Provider
Non-Delegated

Primary Care Physician
Specialist Physician
Ancillary Services Provider

East Bay Integrated Care, Inc. DBA Hospice of the
East Bay
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Boaia of Direstars
Chapters Haalth System, Inc. and Affiliates
Temple Terracs, Flordda

Opimion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chapters Health System, Inc. and Afffiates, which
comprisa e corsolidatsd balance sheets as of Jecember 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolvated
staternents of operations, changes in nei assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes ¢ the consolidatad financlal statements.

i2 cur opinion, the acopmpanying consolidated financial staterenis presant fairly, in all material 1espacts,
the financia’ position of Chapters Mealth System, inc. and Affiliates as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
and the changes ir thoir net assets and their cash flows for the vears then ended in accordance with
acceunting principies generally acceptad in the United Sintes of America.

Basis for Qpinion

¥We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards ganerally acsepted ir the United States of
America (GAAZ). Qu- responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's
Responsibifites fue the Audit of the Financlal Statements section of pur report. Wa are required to be
irdepencent of Chapters Heaith Systom, Inc. and Affilates and 1o mest olr other sthical reszonsibilities, in
accordanue wiih the refavant sihical requiraments refating 1o vur audits. We balieve that the audit evidence
we have oblained is sufficlent and appropriate to grovide & basis for our auct epinion.

Responsibilities of Managemant for the Financial Statemenis

Managarment is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of tha consolidsted fnanclal
siataments in accordance with accounting princlples generally accepted in ha United States of Amarica,
and for ths dasign, impiementation. and maintenance of internal conlrol relevant to ihe preparalion and fair
presentatien of consoiidalad financial statamants that ars fres from materlal misstatemant, whathar due 1o
fraud or agor.

in preparing the consulldated financial statements, managament is required to svaluate whether thars are
conditions er events, considared in the aygregate, that raiss substantial douot about Chapters Healin
System, Ine. anc Affliates’ abllily fo continue as a going cancern for one year from the dats the congolid2 e
financial stalements are available to be issued.

{Continued)



Auditor's Responsibiliiies for the Awdit of the Financial Stalemenis

iour objeciives are o oblain reasorabie assurance abolt whether he comsolidalad rancial stalements as
& whole aig rea fron rwterial misstatament, whother dus e fraud of error, and o issue ar auditne's reporn
that Inciudes our cpinion. Feasonable aasurance & 2 nigh level of assurance but s hot absoiute assuranca
and tharafore i3 a0t a guarantee that an audit conducted in accerdancs with GAAS will slways detact a
madarial nirsstatament when { exdsts,

The rlsk of not datecting & mate: lal misstatermant rasulting from fracd 18 higher thar foe one resulting from
nrror, @5 fraud may invoive caliusinn, forgery. infentional omissions misrepresantations, or the averride of
internal control, Missiaiamenis are considerad matarial f there is a subsarial fkeiihowd that, nobvidiaty
or 10 ne aggregate. they weddd ivluence he ludgment made by & ressonabie user based on the
consolidaled Arancial =talamanis

in performing an acdit in accorgaros with GAAS, wa.

s  Exarwise profossiopat uciomend and maintain professicnal skeplicism *hioughout the sudil.

v dentfy and agsass the risks of matarial misstatement of the consaldatad financiat statemants, whether
dug o fraud ¢r error, and design ard perform sudit procaduras respnneive to thoge risks. Huch
procatiures heiude examiring, on a test basis, avidencs regarding the amoaunis apd disciosures in the
sonsotidated financial siatements,

= Ohtain an undersianding of intarnal cantrod relevant to the audic in order to design audit procedures thai
dre appropriate io the circumslances. but not for the purpose of oxpressing an cpinion on the
effectiveness of Chapters Health System, ins and Affillates nterna! condiol, Accordingly, no suzh
opininn is axpressad.

+  bvaluate the approonatensaa of accounting poloiss used and he reasorablensgss of significant
acoounting esilmales made by management, 25 well a3 gvaluala the overali sreseniation of the
ecnsolidated financial slaierments,

r  Coacluos whether, in oui judgmers, thare 2re condilions or avents, sonsidered in the acgregais, fat
taise §hstential doub! about Charters Heatth Systam, we and Atfillates’ ahikty 1o cordinue as a going
voncern for & reasonanie pered of time,

We are requirad to communicate with 1hose gharged wilth govemsncs regarding, ameng other matters, the

olanned seope and Bovng of the aud ! signdfizant gedit findings, ard ceslain internzal conteclralated imatlers

that wa identified during tha aydit,

Other Matfers

Sur audf was conducted for the purcose of forming an opinicn on the 2023 consalideted finarcia:
statements as & wholz, The 2023 ogligated graue a4d consolidating ba:ance sheeis, stiigatod group and
sangclidating statemenis of opergtions, and obligated group and consoldaiing statements of changas in
not assely are prosenied for purpeses of additional analysis of the 2023 consalidated nancia! statamenis
rather than o present e financial position and opsrations and changss in nat assets of e individaal
afftiates and are nat 2 required part of tha 2023 conscidated financal statemanis. Such information |z tea
respoinsibiity of marayement and was derived from and refates dirsetly o the undeiying Hccounting ang
other records usad o orepare the 2023 consolidated financisl siafements. Tra infermabon has bean
subjecied tc the auditing peocedurss aoplied in the sudlt of the 2023 cansalidated financiai statements and
LR adfdional procedures, fcluding oomoaiing sng recorciling sech information diraclly to the
dnedartying accounting aad other records gsed to prepara the 2023 consglidated $inanciai stalements or o
ihe 2023 congolifated Anarcial state mants thamseives, and olhsr agdiional procedures in accardapcs with
auditing stancards generally accesterd in the Unkied States of America, in cur opinien, the information is
fairly stated in &Y material respects in ralation to the 2025 consoldated financial slatemerts as a whasio,

O ovoeera. LLP
Crowe LLP
Tarmgpa. Florida
aAprl 26, 2024



CHAPTERS REALTM SVSTEM, iMC, AND AFFLUIATES

COMNSGLIDATED BALANC: BHEETS
Digcambar 37, 2023 and 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTER, ING. AMD AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Necsmber 21, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 4 - ORGAMIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Chigamization and Mission Chapters Healih Systerm, Inu. and Affliates {oolisstvaly CHS), is a Florida nonpradil
porperation tat provides support and care §or paople o our comminity with or affectcd by advanced
inegses by offedirg a wids varlety of compassionale hesfincare choicss. CHS's senica areas inciude
Fiorida, Gectgia, Viginia, Maryland, and Washington DC.

CHS 15 the zole menmbiar of each of tre oliowing entities

LifaPath Hospioo, ine. (LPHY LPH is ¢ Florda nonprofit corparation wnose mission Is to provide hespina and
pihwar end of life senvices for residents lving in Hilishorough County, Flarids.

Good Shephard Hospice, Inc (GSH). GSH s a Florda nonprai corporation whoss mission is to provide
mospice and stawr end of fa sanvdoas far nesidents living 'n Poll, Highlands, Hardea, and Monrea covunties,
Fioriga,

Chapters bealh Fharmacy. LLC (PHAY Pharmacy 18 & Florida singia mamber fimited lizbillty <ompany that
providas phammacy services to the Alfiiiaies.

Chaptars Heally Palkabive Care, LLC {PALY Failielve Cara |3 a Flotida single mamber Inited Bahility company
that provdcles pallistive cara senvices in the countieg servad by the Affitalas.

Chagpiers Health Steffing, LG (155 Sieifing o 3 tlewda single memaer lmin lability compary thal timnernly
provdiddes phyeician, nursir). and Meapy 3arvces 1 tha Alfliaws.

Hemarde-Fasce Heapice, Inc. (HPH) HPH s a Flodda nonprof somporaicn whoss nission I8 10 piovide
hospica ana other end-of-ife serves Qr residents fiving in hamande, Pasco, Citrus, and Alachus coundes,
HPH alss proviced home heakih serices i Pasco Firallas, Hardes, Hightancs, Hitlsborough, aad Poik cointies
unti Marah 2022 sl which me hese sendices wera discontinued and the Medicars anrcliment was valuniarily

terminatad.,

Cornersicne Hosnoe & Pelliative Sare, ing. (L0 s g Florida nonpeofit corporztion whoss mission s L
crovide hospice and ather end of |ife services tor residents living in Marion, Sumisr, Lale, Grange, Pell:
Osceola, Hardee anc Highlands counties n Central Florida and Cherckee, Cokb, Gwinrett, and Fulton
ceunties in Northwestam Geargia.

Comeislone Heaith Services, LLC (SVC) SYC is a Florida single membear brited liability company that
nrovides patlitive care services in the countiss served by “he AHilizies.

Cara Partmers, LLC {CFLY. CPL is 3 company ragisterad in Delawars whose purpose s (o develop and
provide consolidated financial and purchasing services W the venture partners as well as cther noi-for-
profit nosplce companies, Services may ncluds gepersl finencial copsuding, specinlized {financial
consuking, 1T consaltng, coarations consultirg. bookksaping, mnawtics for management, and discountad
graup purchasing opporturkes for clients.

Chapters iiealth Foundabion: (Foundation): Foundatlon is a nongreft organizalion that is an afflhate of CHS
fas soig member of the Foundat'an) and will support 8if current and fsture CHE aflistes.

Hospics of Okeechobee, inc. (HOK: BOK s 4 Florida rontioft coparalion whaose mission i3 10 provida hospice
and pifer and-of-life services for residents living in Ckeechobase, Martin, and 51 Luace couniies.

(Continued)



CHAPRTERE HEALTH SYETEM. NG, AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TG CONMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dovember 31, 2025 ang 2027

NOTE 7 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Hope Huspive snc Community Services, ine. (MOP) HO® s a Florida nonprofit corporation whosas mission s
t: presvids hospice and cther ed-of-fe sendces Tor residerts living in Chadobte, Collier Glades, Mendry, and
Lea countias

Visiting Murses Agsotiation of Southwes: Fionida, ke, [WNAY WNA 5 3 nonprefit corperation that providas home
anc cemmwnity basad healih care services 1o ali peoala In Charlotte, Colliar, Gladaes, Hencry, and Lse
courdies, in March 20232, these services were discondnued and the Madicare anrciinent was volirdady
terminated.

Capiter Caring Health {CCHY: CCE s a Virginla nonstook corporation and is the sole memper of thraa supporting
organizations: Captal Hospice dhia Capital Caring, Capllal Carng Stay at Home Services, e, and Capiial
Carng Advanced Hinezs, Ing.

capital Hosoies dhbia Capdal Carng {CAP L CAR is a nanpralt organiz adon whoss mission s o provide nospice
and otner snd-oi-le services far resdents iving in Northemn Virginia, Washington 0.G . supurban Madyvlaad, and
surrcunding meleopoiitan communities Capdal Caring is the snig member of Capitas Padiative Care Consultants
{CPEC)

Caprted Palliative Care Consuiants: CPCC s a virglnls eingle memsier imitad liabilly company that providas
salilative tara servicas i the counties served by CAR

Caphal Caring Stay at Homie Barvices, Inc, (CCEH) COBH s a Viginia nonerofit orgarization :hat offers
sarvices ihat seek wo Improve patients' social and physical environmants as a means of bettaring thair care are
guality of ife so that thay can ultimately stay at home. Services include cars coordinaton, ransporlation,
assistance with nulritionsd ~ceds, caregiver rauning. home safsty avelustions, Melping with, pet cars, and icther
gensra coordination of medical and hoimecars servizas.

Capital Caring Advancad llnass, Inc. {CCAIL CCAIs 3 Virgirua nonprofi organizetion that sarvices seniors wno
o , > " % .

are hone limded or otherwise Zenefit from reseiving mosi of thalr care in 1he Fome due to an advanced iinass

or disgblity

Allcare Medicai of Florida (Alcare): Alcars provides a fufl range of mediza! equipment o Sospice patients and
Eose with Me fimiting conditions. At December 34, 2021, CHS cwred 30% of Alcare. CiS acquired the
ramaining 0% of Alicars in 2092 and subscouently sold Ine eniity 10 an unrziated pany for 81,800,000, CHS
worded a 1oss of approsimately $345,000.

SareNU, inc. (CHUY. CMU ‘s 3 Florida for-profit corporation and was established o pravide patients with a
colleborative team baser approact 10 cironic finess care. CNU is authorzed 1o issue 00,000 shares of
vormimon stock. As of December 31, 2022, there ars 100,000 commaon slack shares ssusd and autstanding,

Assurty Nirect Contrackog Enity (ADCEY ADCE, a Florde limited Sabilin company, grovides and arranges
for medical care to bensficiaries hrough managed care capitation agreaments in the state of Florida who
have enroiled with various health pians, AUCE' s capilalion agresments with the vanous heallh plans ara
&0 2 on-nsk basis. CNU cwns 80% of ADCE and has been consclidated wih GNL for financial reporting
TFDOEES,

SECUR, Inc (SEC): SEC, it a Flonda for-profl; corporation and was sstabiished as 2n insttutioral Speaclal
MNesds badicare Advantzge Plan (-SNP). The scie sharsholder of SEC iz Carably, ine.

{Cortinuoed)



CHAMTERS HEALTH BYSTER, INC, AND AFFILIATES
NCTES TO CONSCUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decamper 31, 2023 and 2022

MOTE 1-- QRGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACTOUNTING POLICIES [Contiruad)

Basia of Preseniston: The consolidated Graodial staterments have been prapared an the accrual basis of
Aceening in 3ceordancs wih scocunting snirciples generally acosotad v the United States of Ametica (U3
GAAP).

- The accompenying consolidatea financizl stetements include the accounts of CHS
| inter-crganization accounts ard iransacticns have been sliminated in conzotidalion.

and itz afftiales. Al

Basig of Cangalidg

Fmanglsl Steternent Presectabon The congoidated Inancial stalersents report the changes in aod lotals

of saeh net 2sset tiass based on the axistancs of doncr restrictions_ as applicable. hiat assate are classifies
as nst assels withou! dofor resirictions or nel assets with donor restrictions and are detaited as foilows:

MNet gaseis wilhout donor restrictions sre net assets that are ngt subject 1 denar-restrictions and may
be expended Ior any purpose in perforriag ths orimany ahjesilves of CHE.

Mot assets with Sonor restacticns are net assels sLljact o slipulations wipased by donors and grartors.
Somae donar rastrictions are lemporary it Aature and w1 be meat by actons of CHS or by oassage of
time, Hher donor resitictions are parpetval i saiture whare the doror has stiputated the funds be
Imaintaired In perpeatuity.

I w ilerast: Non-cantrolling irterest is he sorion of the squity ownarshia in ar affili .'-3[,
attrinutabie to e parant company (CaraMU), wino has mw contiialing iMeresl, GNU owas 55% of AD
and has baen consclidated with CNL far Bnancizi feporting puarposess,

Y Estirnates. Tha oreparation of consoiidated fnancial slatemenis in aonfermily with 1.5, GAAP
recuired management 10 maks estimates and assumptons that affect the raported amourms of assels any
liaktitigs ane discosurs of condrgont asseis and liooilites ot the dsts of the consslicaied financia)
statements and tha raporied asrmoudnts of ravenues and expenses Suring the ragarting pardod . Actua’ resilis
coulet giffer from ihose estmales.

Cash end Uash Souvalents) Cash and cash @duivalents consist of bank Jeposits in accounts that are
federafly insurad up 10 $250.200, Alimes these amounts may sucesd fegerally insured druis. Additionairy.
for purposes of tha oonsalifatzd statements of cash dows, GHS sonsiders ult bhighly liquid invastments of

oparating cash purchase with an original maturity of three manths or iess to be cash aouvaients.

Patienl Aceounts Receivabia, Met. The patien] agcounts receivalie balance reprasents the unpaid amounis
bilied tc pallents and third-party payors, which trciude Maodicare, Wedicsid, and commercial insurers,
Conractual adjustments, discounts, and implicil price cor cessions arg rw-vdprj iy reocrt recetvaties at
net realizabie va‘ue. Pasi dug recevables are determined based on sontrsotual tenms, OFS noss not
attToe ilzrest on any of B5 aconunts recelvabie,

Uapitated Accounis Fecelvabie Capilated accounis receivables consist of amnunts due from managed

cure capitaled contracts  The capitated receivabies are carried at contracted ameunls and capatatod
sayrments are receivad in zocardanca with the risk adjustment made! and timeline nsed by the Canters far
Mzdicare and Medicaid Sorices.

Motes Rocawgbla: Note recelvable represants advantas under a ine of cradit agraemant io Capita) Garing
as well as funds loaned I a software company te halp develop somputer scftvrare for hospice. Tha software
loans are valuad at Fistoric cost. including vnpaid contractual intarest payments, less g valuation aliowance
for which 3t & protable that Captal Caring wall be urabis o collecl. See MNotes 2 and 7 for additionat
irfarrmatizn.

iContinued)
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, ING. AND AFFILIATES
SOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS
Decambar 31, 2025 and 2022

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES i Contnued)

mvesimainis. Al invesunents are siztad at their fair values in the consolidaiag belance sheets. Unrsaiizad
gains ang [0sses drz inciuded in the change in nat assots. Sae Hola 6 for addiional information o the
naiuie of GHS's investmants. Invasiment incorme or loss { neluding reatized ard urreatized gains and iosaas
aninvesunerds, interest, and dividends) is included within nonaparating revenues and axpaneas, Unless
ifte incarne or ioss is triated o assets with donar restriciions.

Assets Limiteg as jo Use: Certan amounts of CHS's cash wnd invesimonts ara limited as 1o use by
provisions of dorey restrictions. Trese nush sl investimerts ere clessifed as asseis isited o usa in the
stocompanying conscildoted Galance sheets.  Amounts reguired to mest ourrent ligblities have Seen
classified 33 currert assats in the consolidated balance sheeis st December 31, 2023 and 2022, The
investiment incame or lss an invesirments that ace rastricled by dopcr o law Is recorded As incresses or
decrgaszes o net assets with donor rasirigtions, ’

interest Rate Swap Agreemaenys CHS enterad inle intorss! rate swap agresments 25 part of ther nterast
rite risk management strategy, not for speculation.  CHS has electzd to reparl tha nstrumenic as
freestanticg denvativas with gains and Iosses included within change in el assets without donor
rasitictions from oparalions.

Tre derivatlvas are separated into currant and non-current assets or ligpitities based on thair axpaciad cash
flows. Cash inflows expactad wihin ong vesr, moluding derivalive 299sts that THS nonds o sotlle, are
repodted as currert ss2els, Cash inflows expecisd beyond une yaar are reporied as non-curant asdets,
Cosh cuifiows expected withie tna yoar, nouding dervative lisbilitiss in which the sounierpariy has Hha
contractual right to setife, are repuded as current [abilities, Caah oulficws expacted bevond ong voar are
reported as non-current liabiites

es! Inverartos are stated Al the ower of COs of net realizable valie, using tha first-in, first-aus

i Agssly Other current assats are comprsad of primarily of propaid expensas, denosis, other
receratie, and other missellarecus current assefs. Prepaid expenses at Dacerrber 51 2023 and
2022 ware approdireately 37 851,003 and $5,952,008, respestivaly. Doposits at Decamber 31, 2027 and
2022 were approximately $3,448,000 and 3930000, respectively. Other sccounts receivatls st

Ry

December 31, 2033 and 2022 were approximately 58,248,000 ang 3646 000, raspeciivaly.

Property and bquipmient. Praperty anc eguipmeant are staisd at cost or, if a2quired through an affiiiation
agreemant o donated to CHE, i falr value on the date of acguisdicn, Property and equipment suiuired
through 3 busiress affliaton is sise suind at fair velue. Additions and improverrents over $2.500 are
capitdized. Expendiiures for rautine maintenance ars charged to operations. Daprsciation s muvaded
over the estimated useful iives of the varlous ciassos of asssts which range Mo thrae to thiny years and
is computad or the siraight-line methed.

Giits of ipng-ived assets such as land. buldings ar equipment are reported as Wiresticied supnor unless
axplicit doner stipudations spacly how the denaled assats wie o be usad . Gifls of long-ivad assers with
expiicit dona: stigulatons thaf specify how e assats are 1 be used and gifts of cash and other assate that
mus! be used 'o aequire iong-lved assets are raporad as support with dorer resirictions. Absen) explict
denor stinllalicons aboutl how inng thogse Jong-lived assets must be maintained, expiratans of dunos
resiriclions arg reparted when tha deraled or anquired lung-lved assats 2ra placad inasrvae.

iinntinged)
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CHAPTERS HEALTH &YSTER], INC. 8ND AFFILIATES
MSTES TO COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Denenbei 31, 2023 and 2022

HOTE § - ORGAMIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The cost of property and oouipmert sold o otherwise dissosed of and the acounuiater depraciatinn
anplicahie thersto are aliminatad from the cocounds, and ony resulling gain o fnas is relecizsd in tho
conselidated financial stetements i the vear of disposiion.

irstanyishe is. The Organizalion has acouired intzngible assetz Huwmgh ds affilaticon agreoments as
dascrihad In Note 2. Intsngibie asseis conslsts of radenarnes, certificates of need, and a PACE license.
The usslul fives of tne intangible assels range from 135 to Z0 years.

Impairmenl of Long-Lived Assae: On an ongoing basis, THE reviews lorg-iived assats {propsdy and
equipment and iniangible assets) for impalrmeant whenerrar avants or circumstances indicate that the
camrying amounts may be overstaled.  CHS coosiders potential impairnent losses fo exist f the
undiscounted cash Aow sxpacted to be generated by tha assels are 1855 Hhan caimying vaive. The
irpairment loss adiusts tho assets o fair value. During tihe year, THS deissminad tha! the Achieva
radepame no longer had valus A the homs health practices were voluntanly dissaived. CHS recortdac a
loss of 31,516,134 which is includad within loss on disposai of licenseg within the consolidates staternenis
of oparattons. As of Decsmbar 31, 2023 and 2022, managemant behevas that neo offer impalrments axist,

Goodwill. Goodwill of approx-maizy 516,397,000 at Decemper 31, 2023 ang 2022, respactively, reprasarnts
the excess of the purchase price over the assigned fair valte of the identifiabie et assels Amgiirod 17
gssociation with CH3's purchase of Good Skepherd Hospics, o (GSHL During tha year anded
December 31, 2022, OHE sotd Alvare, which resuited in the decrease of goodwdll of $1,082,538 Goudal
I8 tastad fnr impairmsnt annuaty unless events warrant more frecuant festing, THS has evaluated iis
gxisting gocdwill for wnpairment as of Decernber 31, 2023 and 2022 and pas dainrmined that goodwil ia
TIC% itmoairad.

) Espangas and Estimated Patent Cars Evsenses Payable: When a patient receivas hospics
its Ligder the Medicare o Med-caid programs, the hossize provider becomes tha payor for alt madical
sanvices relaled o the palizni's lenninai dagnosiz. UM nas contracts with various providers of physician,
irpatient, ard outpationt sereces which generally state thal the providar has approx’mately 12 manths from
the dale of service 1o invoice CHS for tha hospice miated charges. CHS estimates and regords @ Habiiiy
for satient care wapenses which are inturmad mut not reportod (IBANR). This IBNR astimale i bosad upon
an analveis of invoiess paid and sstimated current wtiiizaticn and other stalistics. The differance batyaan
CHS's eslimates of [BNR patient care expanse and aciua! expenses is included in ot deductec fram patient
caie Bxpensss in subusquent periods in which such differences are identifigd. Patieni care axpenses weie
approximately 547532 300 and 823,115,000 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 20722,
respecdvely, and are incuded in purchased services i ihe consulidatsd stataments of cperatizns.

Thirg-Party Medieat Claim Expeoge.  Medical clalm expanses are costs for provlding medicsl rarz to
patients under tha direct conlracting antity and PAGE programas,  The psbimatad reseren us Insurred but
not raporiad clalms is incluced in the fability for thitg-narty medical claims expense, Actual claims axpense
wit! differ from the astimated liability dus to faciors in estimaiad and aniual member atilfzatlon of healthcars
safvices, he amount of charges, 20d ather factors. Adiustmants o ihess astimatas are recognzad iniha
pariods ir which mors orecise data becomes availabia.

fContinued)
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®OTES TO CONSTLIOATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS
Decembear 31 30233 and 2022

MOTE 1 - CRGAMIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (Continuad)

Met Paliant Servien Revenues. Fatiant asrvica rsuanugs are reporied & tha amount thatl refiecls the
utimaio congideratior CHS exuects o receiva in sxchange far provicing pationi care. Thess amounts aiz
due from third-party cayors. primary eommercial health insurers and government orogrsms (VMedicaie ans
Madicaid), and includes varlable consfderation for ravenie adiustimenis dus io seltiaments of audits and
2views, a8 wall a5 cerlain hosploa-spaciiic ravanue raditatons. Approdmatey 94% are 52% of the CHY
~et gatiand service revenue was derived from tho Madinare and hedicaid programs for the yvaars endod
Sacamber 31, 2023 and 2022, respsclively. Amounts are gansrally billed monthly or subseguent to patian
discharge. Bubsequenl changes in ihe ransadtion srise initisily recognized ars ot significant.

Mospicg servicas are poovided on a daily pasls and the type of service provided ‘s desermined based an a
physician's determination of 2acn patient's specific needs on that given day. Reimiursement rates for
hospice sarvices ere o a per tfen Dasis reuaidiesy of the iype of service proviced or the payar.

Reimbursenment rates fram government pragrams are estabiished by the appropriate governmental agency
ane arg standard 20ross ali hospice providers. Reimbutsemed sales Tom health insurers arc nogotialed
willh 2ach payer and generally sinuctured o ciosaly mirar the Meaicars reimuursemeant maodat,

The ypes of hosuice services provided and associatad reiinbursamen: rodel for each are as ichiows:

Routino Hisrne Care 000Urs wihen @ pafient recaives hospice care in ther home, igiuding a nureng
hame setting. The rmuting Nome cars rate is paid fior sach day hat a patient is in a hospice Lrogeam
and iz ol receiving ene of the ciher categores of hospice sere. For Megicars patisnts, ihe ruutine
home zare rate reflects a bwo-tierad rate. with a highar rate for the first B0 devs of & hospice patisnt's
care and a luwer rals for cays 81 and after. |n aadition, hera is & Service Intensiy Add-on zayinent
which covars dirger home care vigits conducted Sv 5 regisiered nurse or social worker in the last seven
days of & hospice patient's life, raimbursed up iu fuur howrs per day ik fiftlean-minuie increments at the
CUPUNYOUS NOMe care ralg.

Gengral Inpafient Cae oecu's when a patient requires services in a controlled selting for a shor perind
of tirra for pain conirgd or symptom management which cannal o meanagad in aer setiings. General
inpatignt care servives musi he provided o a Medicars or Madioald certfied hospitai o7 lneg-larm care
faciiity ar at a frasstanding npsiient hospica facility with the required ragistered nurse staffing.

Conlinuoss Home Care Is provided 1o patients whiie 4t home, inciuding & nursing licme setting, 2unng
zeriods of crisis wher inignsive monitoring and care, primarnity nursing care, s required in orier @
achieve paliiaion or management of acute madical symmloms  Condinugus home care reguires a
minimum of 8 hours of carg witin a 24-hiour day, which beging gt midnight. The care must oe
predominanty nursing care provided by sither a reg.aterad nirse or leansed nurse prachitlonar. While
e published Medizare and Medicaid continuous home cars rates are dally rates, Medicare and
Medicaid pay for confinucus hiome care in fftegn-mmute noremants. This fifteer-minule rale &
cabslated by dividing the daily rate by 98

Raspite Care pormila a hospica natiant o recoive services on an pAlant sasis for a short perded of
time in ordar te provide catisf for the satisnt's family or other caragivars from e demands of caring for
the patient. A hostice can receiva paymans for resplte care for a diven patlend for up o five consacutive
days at 2 lime, atter which respito cara js redmbureed 4t the routing home care rais,

(Crntimied)



CHAPTERE HEALTHE SYSTrEM, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dezember 31, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 1 ~ ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGKIFICANT ACTOUNTING POLICIES {ContinLed}

Fach leval of carg reprasants a saparaie pramise under the contract of care and is prov dad indepangenty
for eacht patignl, contingsni upon the paticnts specific medigal ngeds as datermined by a
whysiciar. However, the clinical criteria used to deteymine 5 palient’s [sual of oare s consistont avross all
patients, givan that, each patiant is subjact @ e same payor rules and regulations. As a resoli, CHG has
voncluded that sach level of care s capable of haing distinct and is distinet n the comtext of the
contract. Furthermere. CHS has determined that sach level of care cenrasanis 5 stend ready sarvice
provided as a szries of elther days or hours of patient cae GHS believes that the gerformance obligations
ior @ach leval of care meet critaria m oe satisfied over time. CHS renognizes revanue based on the sarvice
atput. CHS beliaves this to ba the most faith?ld depicton of the rans’er of contro? of services as ihe patient
simnuliEnanusly recaives and consumas the banefits provided by thae performance, Revenue is recognized
ori & daiiy or hourly basis for 2ach patient in aceordance with the raimbursament meds! for each typa of
service. CHE' pzrformance obligations refate lo confrasts wilh an exgecled duration of less than cne
vaar. Therefore, CHE has cloctod to apply the apliona! exception provided in FASH accounting standard
“Revanve from Soniracts wifh Castomters " (ASC 608) and is not required to disslose the aggregats amouni
of the transaction srice allocatad to performance abligations et gre unsatisfiad or partially unsatisfied at
tha and of tha roporting parodd. The unsatisfied or partlally salisfied parformanes obfigations refersd to
above ralate to beregvemen? services provigad o patisrts’ families for up o 12 months after discharge.

Gereraily, patients whe sra covered by tritd-party payors are resporsitle for related deductibies and
cainsurance which vary in amount. CH3 also provides service o patienis without a reiimbuisemeant sourne
and may offar thiose gatianis discounts from standard charges. CHE essdmates e transaction price for
patients wih dedyclinlas and coinsurancs, along with those wninsured patients, based on nistorics!
exoeieie and curreid condilions. The estimate of any contractual adistmanis, discounis or impiicit ornce
conressfons reduces the amourt of sevenus initially racognized. Subseguent changes o the estimate of
the lransaction prive are recoided as adipstmeonis 0 patient sorvice revenue n the perod of
change, Sdbsebusnt changes thal are detérmined 1o b the réadill of a0 adversa changs In tha patiants’
abilily 12 pay (Le., change & oredit rizx) are recerded as provision for gncoliectbie accaums. CHS has rc
matgrial adjusimenis related fo subsequent changes in the astimate of lhe tranasotion price or subseqitant
changos as ihe resul! of an adversa change in tho palient's abinty to say for any penod reportad

for the CHE patlerts in the nursling home setticg in whion Medicaid pays the rorsing home room and
boara, CHE sarvas 45 a pass-through beiwesn Madicaid and the nursirug homa. CHS is raspoensilde for
paying the nursing hams for that patisnt's reom and board, Medicaid raimburses CHS for 35% of the
arrezani paid o the nursng homa, T2 has conalided that the 5% differspos netwesn the amount paid o
the nursing home and the amauri receryed from Madicad is an adivstmant 1o fransaction price and, 88 &
rasutl, ihe 5% Is recognized as & raduction to revenue recognized in the accompanying conzclidated
firancial siatements.  MNursing home room and hoard sxpensas ousr ravanuos for the vears snded
Dacamber 31, 20423 and 2022 were sporodimataly 52,471,000 and $71 483, 00C, raspectively.

Laws and reygulativns conceming goveramant programs. inciuding Medlearg and Medicaid, are complex
and subjest o varying interpretation. Comglance weth such laws ang regulations may ba subject o tuluio
govarmment review and nterpretation, Adddionally, lha contracts CHD has witl commersial nealth
rsurance payors provids for ratroactive audit and review of claims. Settlement with third carty payors for
ralpoactive adiustmenis due to audilts, reviavws o invesiigstions are congldered variable considacation and
ara inciudad i the deteramination of the esimared transaction orice for providing patient care. The variable
sonsidaration i3 astimatad hasad on iha lerms of the paymert agreemoant, axizling corresponasnce from
the payor and our historical setderment activily, These estimatas arg adjusted in fulure pariads, as new
iformation becomas gvailable, Macagemont intencs 1o uly cooosrats with any govemmenal agencieg
rorecuazts for inforrration.  Norcompliance with fgws and requlations can make the CHS subjact in
raguiatory action, nzliding fines, penaltiss, and exclusion from the hedicara and Msdooid programs,

{Continaen)



CHAPTFRS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMTIAL STATEMENTS
Cacember 31, 2023 and 2022

MOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMNARY OF SIGMIFICANT ASCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued |

Hagpics organizations are sublect o wo specific payinent limil caps under the Medicare program. One
fimit ~elaies o inpahent care daye that excesd 23% 0 the otal days of hospice care provided i the year
CHE did not exceed the 20% cap ralated to inpatiant days in 2023 and 2022 Tre second lict reisles {o
an aggregate Madicars reirnbunimnenl cap caloulated by the CHS. CH3 did not exceed the Medicaie
refmbursomeant cap for tha vears ended December 31, 2023 and 2422,

During 2020, CHS affiliatas had sslect Medicare claims ander ravisw. The amoumt of tha settiement
accrued as of Becemier 301, 2023 ang 2027 wag auproximately $226,000 and $1,002,000, respectvely,
and is included in hird-panty selfsments ic Me accompanying consolidaiod batance sbeets, The remaining
oelance is for mizcellangaus third-pany overpayments.

Suring 2022, CHS afilfiutes bad sefest Medicore claims under review under @ Targeizd Probe and Sducate
regulatory claims review. During such review, maragenent determined bets was an anor in the soding of
ceriain ciaims. CHS sei-reported and paid approximately §d,144,000 back o Medicare. Managemort
recorden this a5 a reducton o ret pakent sarvice revanue daring the year ended Decomber 31, 2027

Adeitionally, denng 2022, the Office of inepector General {OIG) is paiformmyg an audil Medicai Fatt A
services ciaimed by LPH. The abjective ¢t the acdt is 10 determing wheinsr services provided by the
Maspice doring the periad daneary 1, 26240 @ Deceraber 337 2021 cempled with dedicare raquirerments.
The DG audit ia i process ard LifePatk has nnt recalvest any findings from the OIG as Decemier 31,
2023 and thweugn the date of the independent Audicors regart and tarefors has no! recorded a liabilly as
of December 31, 2022 or 2022,

Beginning in Mavemntwer 2021, ana contlnuing through Februiary 2072, Medicare conducied = Sunptemental
Medica! Raviaw Confraclor (SMREC! claims roview. Cagital Garing recefved notificators Hhat tha SMRC
ciaims raview identifiad approximataly £2 5355 000 of imuroser oeyments. The SWRC clzims review
identifiod approximately $1.423,006 a5 heing impraperty pard by the State of Virginia and was racouped
against payments i 2022 The SMRC clalms review deniified acaroxirnataly $1 122008 a3 being
iniproperly paid by the Stews of Marvland . Approgimataly S280,000 was racouped against pavments in 2022,
and in Augist NP7, Capital Canng snterad into & repayineni agreernent for the ramaining badsnce of
approximataly 5342.000 to ba ragaid in 10 modthly mstallments, inciuding inte-esd al an annual ate of
5. 375% Tha ramainder of the selitemant was paid durng the vear endad Dacernoar 31, 20723, and here is
a0 payable al December 31 2023,

FALE Revenus: GHS opsrates Hope PACE (Program of All-Inciusive Cara for the Eldanly), & Modicare and
bMedicaud arogram that helps paople meel thal heaith care needs i tha cotminunity insioad of gaing to a
nursing nore or oiner cary facilkies. PACE sarvas individuals who ara sges 65 or o'dor: cartdisd by thair
siate in need nursing Nomie care; able to five safely i the cormbinity at the time of enralimant; and Tve in
a PACE senvioe area. Capitation ravenus recopnizsd frorm the PACE program reiales io coniracts with
paricipants o which tha parfermance oblipstion s to provide heaithoare services o the participants. CHS
contracis directly with Medicars and Medicaid (o marage the healthcars neads of the pregram's pariicipants
and records PACE capitation revenus o0 & per mamber, par monin "PMPM") basis. Fees are recordsd
Gross i revenyes betadss GHE Is acting ag a arincipal in providing for or averseging esnmprahansive care
provided 0 the paricipanis. CHS considers all contracis witn parlicipants a3 2 single pesfornmance
obligation tc provite corrprehessive medical, haaith, And secial services that imegrate acule and iohg-term
care. The capitation revenues are recognized oasad on the estmated PMPA transaction price o bansier
the servive for a dissinct incromgnt of the saries (e menthl. CHE recognizes revenue i the month in which
parlicipanis are entitied {0 receive comprehensive carg banctits during the contiact term. During the yesr
enced Decembar 11, 2023, CHS recogrized spproximatety 541,402 000 n PACE revenue inciuded within
net patient service revenue included ik the conaclidated statements of cperations

{Continued)
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, M{L D AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSQUIDATED FINAMCIAL 3TATERNENTS
December 31, 2023 and 2022

NGOTE 1 ~ CRGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCGUNTING POLIGIES {Conlinued;

Capleied Bevenus: Capitated contract revens is recarded as revenua in tho moath Bl members sre
entitled te hasithcare servicos through contracts wilh ADCE. As of Secember 31, 2023 and 7672, CHS
had cepitation agrgements in place with one nealthcars payar (non. sk}

ity Carer THS veainines ea ch patient’s abiity to pay dusing o admission process. When 4 palient
mesls certan oitarla part or ai of ithe padent's charges are daemed charfty cara and are not bilsd ior
cofioction. Secause SHE dues not pursue codscticn of amounts Aaternmined 1o gqualify as charity care,
thase amouris are excluded from re? pabent sondce revenue, The cosd of chariy care srovided was
appraximately 57,093,000 and 56,743,000 frer the years enced Decermber 31, 20073 and 20272 resgectively.
thiz cost astimate was based on the prganzatior-wide cost to charye ratio.

I gddifion i aroyiding cradey care mits condnuing effort o furthar its mizsion, CHS alse provides & vanaty
of programs ang samvices fnat raceive liflls or ro funding.  Thase include medicyl resedrch medics!
adycation sragrams, caregivar IIGrams, axtensive communlty bereavamant programs, snd children's gniaf
centers. noluding twice-vaarly camps.,

Continudions: Contributions recelvad and unconditonal oromisds 0 giva a7s roccedad as revanus withoo!
donoe restqclions or revenaa with denar restrictons dapending on tha axisterce of denor restricllans and
the natura oF such rasinctions [ they exlzt. Condiffonal promisas [0 give ara recagnized in ke consalidakad
statlernents of cperzticons only when tha corgitions an which thay depand are subatantially mot and the
promises bacorme unsanditionai,

When & donor rastriclion expires, that is. wher a stpaiated lime restriction nds, or purposs reslitcficn is
accoriplishad, noi azsats with duner realiictions are reclassified lo netl Assets without donor resincions
and renorted in ine consolidated statements of gperations 3z nel a15ets reicased fram rastrictions,

Donor restricied giftts that are recelved ior which thelr rastristed purpese is met during the same year Arg
insially recorded &3 mef assais with donor restrictions and ihen reporled a8 nel asseis relzased from
resirlctions and reclassified as nei assels without dopor restactions,

Donated Services: Nonaled services ara roflecicd in the consolidatad financial staiomanis al the fair valug
ewed. Tha condiiladions of senvices are rocognized of the services recewed {a) creale or
285

of services
F5 £35ing

gohance non-dnancia assets or (b} requirg specialized skills that are provided by indid dle‘l

those skills and weouid ypicaly need in be purchased i not provided py dosaiivn. Thare were no donatad
services recegnized.

‘ . o The sonsoidand stataments of operations inciuds chiarge in net assets withoct
donor rpatr.ctlom bpf e atnar sharges which is desigrated as CHS' pedormance indicaior.

income Tares: Chaoters and the affiliate organizations, except for CNLL are exampt foom income taxes on
income from relaterd actvites undar Section S0{ci{?} of the LS. Internsl Fevenue Oode and
caorresponding stato tax few. Accordingly, no provision has neen made for federal or stais income taxes

A tax position is recognized an o benefl anly iF it is “wore likely than not' that the 1ax posiion would be

ustained in 2 iz exsminastion, with 8 @Y exarmination being prasumed io acour. The amount recuginiZed
iz 1‘19 largest amount of tax banofit that s greater than 0% likaly (o oe realized on examinglion. For tax
positicns rat mastig he "mors likely than not” test no tae benedt s racorded,

{Cortinned)
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, IMG. AND AFFILIATES
MOTES TO COMSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decamber 31, 2023 and 2022

MOTE 1 ~ ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES (Continued)

The apmicabie Borins 880 have ot been sublact o cxamination hy the internal Revenue Sarvice or the
state of Fiorica for the last three yeas, CS does not expect tha il armount of unrecngrized 1ax banefis
to significanily change in the nex! 12 months. OHS recognizes interest and:or penaises ralaled to income
tax matiers . ihcome tax experse  CHS & not have any amounts acorued for interest and nenalties at

Secamber 31, 2023 and 2022,

U i g Cecorporaban and s subjact o inoeme taxkes. The provision for income taxes is detormined vsing
the assel ond iabiifty approach of acoouniing for income taxes. Under this approach, the provision for
incorne taxes represents income taxes paid or payasle (or recelved or receivable) for the current year plus
the change in deferred taxes during the yesr. Deferres taxes reprasend he future taw CONSEQRIRNCRS
wxpeced 1o ovcut when the reported amasnts of assels and liablities ame recovered or pald, and rosig
from difleisnces betwean the Arancial and tax pasis of the Company’s assels ard fabililes and are
adiusied for changas in tax ratas and tax laws when enacted. Tax benaiits related to yncertain tax positiens
taken or expected 16 be taken on a tax return ars recartiad whas such bonefits meat 4 more ety thar not
Wrashoki, Otherwise, thesa tax benafits are recardad when 2 tax position has baen effactively seitiad,
which meons that the statute of Hmitation has sxpired o the apgroprlate taxing authority has compisted
Inelr exsmination eveq though e stalute of dmitalions remams opan As of December 31, 2023, ONU
belisves none of its noome tax gositions are uncerlaln and, accordingly, fas no amount provitied {o
wicertair tax posiions. The Company dues not axpact the ictal amount of unreeognized tax bensiits io
significantly change in ihe naxt fvelve months Interast and penaliies feiated o unceriain ax POSIhoNs arg
Feceghized as part of the provision for income taxes and ar agwiled baginning in the period that such
intarest and panaltivs would be apsiicabie under retevant tax law Wt such Bme that the relatad tax benafila
i racognized.

Heglassificatony Certain prior year amownts havs besn reciassi€od to canform with the current yaar
areseniation These recizssifications did not have any impact o the “oial net azsets or changs in net asseds,

huhseduenl Tyvenis; Management has parormod an analysis of the activities and ranzaction s subseguent
to Gecember 31, 2023 w determing the need for sy adustments e andier disciosures within the
censolicated finarcial statements for the vear ended Decemzer 31, 2023, Management has parformed
their analysis through Agrl 26, 2324 which is the dats the consolidated fnanoal statemants ware avallable
10 e ssuen.

In January 2024, Chapters and Good Shepherd sofd centain assets 1 Medoare Huspico Zarvices, LLS m
axchanye for $300.000 cash, $300,000 note receivable and a 20% =quity interes: in Medcaje Huspire
aservices LLC. The purpose of this transaction s ‘o entar the haspice market 1 Miami-Dade Gounty.
Fiarida,

tContinuad}
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CHARTERS HEALTH BYSTEM, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
Oecamber 31, 2023 and 2042

NOTE Z - AFFILIATION AGREEMENTS
Current year:
Hope Hospice and Community Services, Ing.:

On Dacember B, 2022, CHS sioned an affiliaton agreement with Hops Hosgice and Commanity Sevices
s, and Hs affiliates 1o expsnd CHE' market in Southweest Florda. On March 1, 2022, OHS and Hooe
Hospice and Community Sanvices, inc. {collectively, the FHope Parties') closed ther affiliation agrasmnant
riaking CHS the sols member of the Mope Fariss. Beginnirg os March 1, 2025, ihe Bnanciat pnattion,
rasUts of activities and cash fiows of all Hope gntties worn consolidated whih SHE. This transaction was
acrousted for under the goqulsition accourting methed of busimess sombinations. As a8 resuit, THS
racarded an Inharend contdbution of 380261224 in 20735, Mo consideration was exchanged, end ng
fnarciat cornmitrnants wore made, CHS incurred spproxmately $874,000 ir asquistlon costs.

Tha ‘sllowmg asle summarlzes the renogrlzad amounts o ideniflabia sssets acquired and liahilitas
assumad at March 1, 2023

Gash b 9,531 656
Fatian! anaounta receivabia 4,985 452
Cihar ancounts receivabla 3,026,684
Imvastoren:s 28,080 70
intanginls sssals and iradenames 5,375 000
Right-uf-uze assets 4,792,535

gty And eguinment 1,664,813
Ciher asgsts BN W
Tomi assals 118,868 530
Accounts payabis % 6,000 560
Arnried ewperisey 387 540
Agcrsd payroll facilities 7167488
Long-meen datyl 19,000 800
Lasss habilitiag 4,811,292

Otner liabiitas 321470

Total iabHifes

Excess of tal value of assels acquired ovar

jabilities assumerd £ a0 rat 224
Inciuded with:n net assats withowt donar rastrictions § BG,024.844
k=g withey pot assets with donor reatricions 3 236 4R

Quring ine period Marcn 1, 2023 to Decembar 2, 20272, the acquirsd debt was paid in ful.

(Canlimnuac
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CHARTERS MEALTH SYSTEM, IMG. AND AFFILIATES
MOTES TO CONSOLINATED FiNANCIAL BTATEMENTS
Depamber 31, 2023 and 20232

NOTE 2 - aFFRIATION AGREEMENTS (Caonlinued)
The iodowing rmethods weig used 1o deiermine fair value:

Property and enuipmant - iair vaiie was determinad using the cosl and ssies comparisen approach
Tradonzmes - fsir value was defarminsd oaing the royaity relief method, a form of the income
approanh,

Cariificate of Need ard PACE licenae - fair vaiue was delermined using the cost aporoach,
Cantractual accounts receivable aporoximaies the fair valus of accounis raceivable.

G apital Caring Health:

On Decembar 27, 2022, CHE signed an afBizilon agreemant with Capiia) Cerng Health snd te affilntes io
spand CHE' markst into the Virginda, Mardand and the Washington D O, malropolitan areas. On May 1,
2023, CHG and Capitat Cading Hesll focliestively, the "Caplial Canles” or "Capital Caring”) clozad thsir
aftidation agreament making CHE the sola member of Capital Cadng Health. Beginning on May 1, 2023,
the fAnancial position, rasulls of activitias 3 sasn fiows of all Capital vnfifies were consoidatsd with CHS.

This tranzaction was gccounted for vnder (1 acosiion accounting mathod of businase combinations. Az
a result, CHS racorsed an Inhersnt contsib stion of $25,131,626 In 2023, Brior 11 the ciosing of the affilatios
agreemant on May 1, 2023, 2R3 loaned the Capits Partiss $7 003,000 in iwo tranches of $5,606,000 (prior
o Dacember 37, 202%) ang $2,000.000 {prior to May 1. 2023). As patt of the afitkation transaction. ino
37,000,000 was accounled for as onnsideralizn paid 1o tha Oapital Parties, CHS fhoured epprodimatsiy
G612 005 in degulsiton cosis.

{Contirmed)
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HOTE 2 - AFFILIATION AGREEMEMT (Coniinusd)

The fohowing tasiz summanizes he esimatod folr volue of Capital Conng's assels and fabliies at Way 1,

223

The following methods were used (o detarming far vaiug.

CHAPTERE HEALTH SYSTEM, N, AND AFFILIATES
MOTES TO CONSOLISATED FiNANCIEL STATEMENTSE

December 31, 2023 ang 2022

Cazh

Patient accomints reciiwitie
Pladges racavable
Irvvesirnanis

infongiisles ard radenames

Property and equipmend
Other sasets
Tolal ansets

Aocounts poystc
Aecrusd expoenses
Avwrued nave Faialities
Lease iabikies

Cher babilites

Totai fabikiay

Eunoss of fair valle of ansets angudred ower

lizhilitieg assumed
Less canzidoration

Inciuded within aet zsaels without donor resirichions
ingludad within net assets with donor restricions

Froerty and eguinenent - fak vaiue was de

7,200,000
23,741,410
18,720,359
| Bad BRY

711,558

5 3008 597
707 4%

G HOS CAY

23, 7RhEN30

ok

18,204,485
x 6,927,141

nined using the cast and sales comparisan agproach.
Tradenames - fair value was datermined vging the royalty relief mathad, a form of the income
ARG
Canfractual aceounis recsivable appyokimatas the fair vaiue of acoounts recaivehie.




CHAPTERS MEALTH SYSTEM, iNC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMIOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacermbar 21, 2023 ang 2022

NOTE 2 - AFFILIATION AGREEMENT [Continuzd:
Brior year:
Cornerstone Hospive & Palliative Sarg, ing.:

On Deacemner 2, 2021, GRS signed an affiliatinn agraament with Cornerstone to swpand CHE markst
Lenral Forida and four counties in MNorthwest Geoigin, Gn Al 1, 2022, CHS and Corersiors
{coligctlvely, the "Parias”) clnsed their sffiilaton seicement making CHS e sole member of Cornarstons.
Beginning cn April 1, 2322, tha hatance sheet results of activities ang cash fows of ail Somerstone entiites
were consalidatzd with CHE. This transaction was aceauntad for under the acquisilion aooaunting method
o DuRingss combsiinations. As a result. CHS recordad an inherent contrbution of $75.7371,681 o 2022 Ko
consklerating was exchanged, and no fnancial comnetirents were made. CHE Incured spproximateiy
$£375,200 in acquisition rosts,

The following table summarizes tha astoraed fair valua of Comarsione's assals and labilities at Apr! 1.

2022:

Sash k4 23 R30,390
Lationt accounls raceivable 0,405,954
Frepaicg 2500145
Intares! innet assets of Comerstore Toandaian 2210063
Intangities and Tracenamss 1 800,000
Right-l-age asssis 454,200
Prozery and aquipment Y ART S
Mher assots LOZ6 257
Dae feom raialed party 1 402,303

Total assatz 2011570

Acuounts payable

Actrued axpanses ard pavrol! daiities
Right-of-usa iablilios

HMote payatdae

Other linnitites

Total fiahiiities

Excess of fair wive of assels acquired dver
tiahllities assumsd

Incduded withir net assels withour doncr restriciions 3 53,662 58
inciudges within net assels with doner restuciions o ow2 w093

The following methods wars ueed (o determing Tair vaiug

Propery ard ecuisgent - fair value was dstermined Luing the cost ang $sies comparison aporeacty
Tradenaries - fair value was datermined uaing tha rovalty rstef method, a form of the income
approach.

Coriraitual BuoLnis receivalle spprorimates the fair valug of acsourds recenvanic.

(Centinued)
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CHAPTERS MEALTH SYSTEM, INC. AND AFFLIATES
MOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fecember 37, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 2 - LIGHADITY AND AVALARILITY

Finaiial assels availanle for gereral sxpandiurs, Ihat i, without donar or other restrictions lirmiting their
Lz, within one year of the halance skeet dale, congnise the faolowing:

2023 2022

Cazh and cash equisaienis Tooasgtaat i 13807074
Short-term: inesiments 11,872 539 D281, 1408
Patient accounis recehabls, gt 476273 3an 19 118,509
Cacitation ecehsbla 5516 A3 FO8%.173
G fromn ralated poarty 75, Ga 5,728,953
Ptedges receimble, current posticn 423454 A2 A0S
Other current assets b 3021 BRRLATLS
5 5 AT.394.597

As part of THE figuidity management pian, managament invests cash in excess of daily renlirements n
shor-erm irvestments and mcrey markat finde. CHS has 5 goal to maintain financial assats, which
constst of cast and short-tenn mvestments, on hang o meet siety days of normal opersling expenses.
O 5 has a polioy o eivuciure its firanciai assats o na avadanis 35 its general expenditurss, liabliiies and
cther pbligations come due. Ths CHE treasury managemen: function s consolidated at the paren: leve!
ard pays expenses o1 behalf of iis affliates. CHE iypically collects patient accounts recovatle within sixly
daye of the date of zervice and its Florida based hospics affiiates carlicipata in ihe Medicare Pericdic
irterim Payment gragram (PP} wiich provides b weakly cash peymenis based on mahagement's estimaie
of consus. GHS recencios PP with actual tillings {eee inss per year and the net PP position is recorded
ir: patien? ascodnts racelvable. Ir e event of an unantoipated liquidity nead, S5 sould utilza the long-
teirm invesitnents that are mow donor restreisd. CHS couidd wliize the line of Zredil 8s descritued i Newae 10
shcuid lgudity neads anse.

NOTE 4 - PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At Oscarmber 31 patient accounts receivabie by cavor catagory consists of the folowing

2073
Medicars R P R
wedicaid 11,476 481
Cther third-party payors 6,751,401
Less Medicarg Pencdic interim Pay-rens (PIP) VIR TR P14 a5 031
Less inpbeit pricea Concessions {20,307 432j {1842 THYS
B .A9823348 5 19115980

iContinued)
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CHAPTERS HEALTE BYITEM, INC. AND AFFILIATES

NMOTES TO SONSOLICATED FiMANMCGIAL STATEMENTS

Decamber 31, 2023 ana 332

NOTE S~ AISETS LBNTED A% TO USE

Tha composiiion of assots imiled as fo vse gt Desomber 31 5 a5 follows:

2023 2022
ash and cash aguiaienris b 9,828,801 % 3,407 44
Monegy raariet funds 1 943 555 80,067
Rlutua finds ] 9'0‘4 123 _t_‘r_)j __,dﬂb
llj x;.ﬂ? 489 5,241,027
Less suwireni povlion e 2y (3452 544)
& 5,808 228 i 1,788 383
NOTE § ~ INVESTMENTS
Invasimanis, slated st fir value, &t Decamber 31 include.
223 e
Caaly ardd cash equivaionts g BR8 725 3 1.7R0,247
Money market funds 3252303 7420132
V3 governner! agengias 1,827 3&8 873,813
Ioigorats bonds 951 24 258,380
Equity rewduai funeds 74,242,794 71,005,837
Sand mutugl fumds 5 B0z 063 3.818.080
Commudities mutual fungs 1 422 4535 1,508,574
Ferad atate fund 110,474 943 147
Equity securilies WAL 8,950,981
!’}B "’83 703 10H 456,851
Lass current portion 1,572,538 9,291, 14
$ 97 viNied § 07 1EEAGR

et S Mgt 7 rima

Irvesiman! income frorn assels imilsd as to uss and invesimeants |5 Somorisad o
sinded Gecambar 3

{ina foliewing for the years

2523 W
Intarast ane dividords, net of fees 3 3982083 ¥ 3273484
N’et reslized gains on saies of secunies 5,855,193 194, 1:21
tusresh zed gains Tloswes) 8228828 _ 121,881,023
P IRa45874  § (18375048

{Continued}
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THAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, SMNT. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TC COMNSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
Decamber 31, 20253 and 2022

NOTE 7 - NOTES RECEIVARLE

Capitat Caring: During 2222, CHS antarsd into a iine of creg!t agreemsni wih Capital Caring The nota is
2 1evolving ling of sradik (3 for ihe paod prior to the vecwrance of the alfillation avert, an amount of up to
$5,0090,000 ang Gi) after the ocourrenge of e affifiabon event, an amouni of upg to 310,000,800, a the
gecurrenca of an affifation tapmination Syent, tha revoiving Ine of credit shail be redocs to 30 and no furthar
advances may bo requesied or mads withow: the writlen consent of CHE. Capital Caring may Borrow, repay,
ang rghorrow hereunder and CitS mav advarce and readvance under this node fom time 1o time until fhe
axpiratinn date. Tha affiliation event is dofinad as the consyrmmation of ths affiaton adreemont wherely
CHS beooines the sols memiber of Sagital Saving, which cocurred in May 2023, The affdation tarminaticn
avent s defined as e fime that Capitai Caring notiies GHE that they wil e longer execute or consummate
the sffiiation agresmard. The note bears an interest rale al the sum of the YWall Sireg Javrnal Frima rate
Rilss 2%.

Un gigsing of (e afiiiatiun agrasment, the note recovable balance Yowean THS and Capital Caring was
saltied. Az of May 1, 20273, Capital Caring hed » halance owistending of 7,000,006, which CHS rasogrized
w5 conadaration pais 1o Capite! Caring as parl of the affiliaton agresments. CHS and Capilel Saring
contmue o wiliza the crealt agraement o lend and “epay iunds hetween the organizations. The termns did
not change post-affibation. The culstanding baisnes or the nole recelvable weas $3.00G.000 as of
Jecember 21, 203 Az of and subseguent Iy the Affliation Event tro note receivable eliminates in the
sonscirdated finaacial stetemsnts,

Softwarn company: Capital Caring advanced fusuls W o softwars company heasdguarerad in MMew Daloans,
Lovigiana, The softwars company douvslops aomputsr calwarz for the hospica industry. All atvancas ars
to b usad solaly for businass surposes and sre stated st unpald principal balances, The leans are setlived
by the assals of e bormower and gusranior of the advanaes. Thers ware no faes invelved @ thesa
ranzactions, No naw loans will ba mads o (ha soffwars somnany Syond those isted pelew,

inferest on tha \oans i recoonized aver the ves of g ans and in calouated on the oulstanding orincipal
nalance.

Loan recelvabie originating in Apri 2015 1,000,008 payasks in full in Aprit 2020 or payable upen sale
o7 transter as defined below; interest accruss guarterly at the 12% (12% at December 31, 20235 An
attowance for doubtful accounts in the amount §1.040,000 has been recorded for the nutstanding
recaivable balance at December 31, 2023,

Loan receivails griginating in April 2016 for 51 500.000 oniginal note was amendsd seveal Umes for a
toty Balancs of $2,970.000; payabie in dultin Fenriary 2021 of pavabla unon sale or irarsfer as defined
helow, interest agorues quarterly a1 12% (12% ol December 31, 20232). Interes! on the amends
amoUrds soecrucs &t an annual interest af of 12%. An ailowanos for doubtiul acoounts in (he amount
$2.970.000 has Heen recorded fof the outstanding racebvanle balance at Dacember 31, 2023,

I & sale or transfar of the borrower oscurs prior 1O 1he 10an malurity dates, sdncipal and any unpeid intsrest
i due in fult plus a percertage of the gross sale pioceeds in axeass of 510,006,000, ¥ no sala or ransfer
ooours within fivs years of the odgination date, the repayrment amount s equal to the prncigal plis A
percentage of iha borrowar entity's curent valde Based on & muitipie of tha botrowear antity's eamings
agfore intarest, depractation, and armaortization. '

An slowancs for doubtful accouris of $1,154, 285 has been establist fur the wnaining interest amounis
contraciuaily due from the scofiwars company as manggement has determinsd it is probable the
ofganization imay not be abie to colleci such zmounts. Per tha elated nota agraements, Capitai Garing can,
iri thie gvent of dafa st and atter notice to the borrower, cornmence such fegal autons or proceadings against
the borroswer and guairantar, as permittad undar the agreemsnt or otherwse 2t faw o &t equity,

{Continued)



CHABPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, MG, AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLHZATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
Deacamber 31, 2022 and 2622

HNOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and aguimnent a5 of Decomber 37 is sy foliows:

2023 2022
Land and and impoverments & BLB3 825 % 1L B8 787
Bididing and leasshold improvoments 207504257 }i
Furmidurs, fixtures, and eduipmant 74 2305 F
Vatioles 3,025,084
Frojacts In procoss _ __gf;ﬂ_-:ll}t'} 12,458, 483
341,208,624 176,557 633
L5558 peolmuiaied capretmlion _ . 145248334 (54,528,805
$ 164,952,290 § 93 968,878

Proiecis in process al December 31, 2023 consis! primarily of software implementation and general faciiity
dporades 1o 22 piaced in service in calendar vear 2024, Thore are not ary sigriicant projacts olfomned or
commitine sty enipred into,

Ceprsciaticr ocuponse fiv the yoars ended Decemrhar 34, 2023 ard 2022, wos approcmataly $11,7682.000
and &2,032.000, respectively. No interas? expense was capitalized during 2023 or 2022,

MOTE & - LEASES

At the mception of an amangement, CHS doterminas ¥ ap grrangement (8 3 lease tased on aij relevant
fac!s ald cirsumnstarces. Leasss are ciassified 22 cperating or financa isasez at the lnasa commanacament
dats. Operating leases are cluded in operating lease ROV assets. current operating iease dabilitfes and
leng-term operating lease fiabilities on the balanue sheets. Finance igases are included in properly and
eduipment, current maiuiites of tong-term taht and fngdce jeases and fang-lenm detrt and finanos irasas,
rot of curent maturities, on e baluice shools. Leasss are clagsified between currenl and loog-torm
fiabilitas based on thoir paymant taems. Lease oxpanse fr apersting leases s racognized on g siraghl-
e basis nver tha leass term. Loases with & 19 of 12 months o less (short-term jeases) ars not reccrded
on the balance shaels. ROU assals seprasent CHE's right to usa an underlying assal for the sase berm
and 'ezse liabilities toresent the obligation to make ieass sayments arising from the ‘vase. ROU asaats
and |ease iabiiles are racoghized al the iease commencement date based on the 3stimatad presant valus
of tyase cayments aver Iha leass tarm ROV assets also Includse prepald rent and are adjusid by the
usgmortized dalancs of Jsage caniives,

As the impiicit rats & genarally not reacily delerminabie for ail of THS's iaggss, CHES ulilized s nsk ree
rate, which is darived from inforimaltion avallable at the leass commencament data, in determining the
presant valie of ieass payments. Some laases irciude ang of more options to extand the lasss, wih
extersion tarms thal can extend the isdse tarm by one o five vears. The exercise of lesse extansion optiona
is at CHS's sola discretion. The lepse Jerm includes cntons to extend or termiraie the iease when 1 s
reagonably cartain trat CHS will exerciss that option. CHS geneelly concluded oplions 1o extend e irase
are ceasenably certan to be exertised whan 1is cost prehibitive to relosate operations or pursues al‘ornative
leasad assets. Cerlain nasss eontain early fermiration nenatlies; howaver, as of Dacember 34, 2023, s
not reascnably certain that GHS will exarcise ur becoma subject to such early tarminalion penaities.

{Contimigad)
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CHARTERSS HERILTH 5YSTEM, iMC. AND AFFILIATES
ROTES TC CONSGSUIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATERENTS
Dacemcer 31, 2023 and 2672

NOTE &« LEASES {Continued?

Monparfutinenle-reigtad defagli covenats, cross-defauit pravisions, subiective defauit provisions and
maters! advarse chenge vlauzas contained n malerial ioose agregingnts, i any, are aiso ovoreatod to
deiermire whether those ciauses 2ffect lease dlassficstion Heal asiode and vahisia leases comprise thoe
majorlty of OHT's iaasing activides.

eI

GMS sucounts for loass agreemeints with laase and non-lease components separately, Cograling expanses
and propadty laxes due fod leased fzaibtias are ascounied for as nondesss componenty, Laasas with 2 tarm
reater thai one year ere recognized on the consiidated baiance sheet as HOU assets and iease llalilitles,
CHS has electad rot to recognice on the consohdater talance sheot ipases with =rms of ane ysar or iwas.

A1 Dgcernber 31, 2023 and 2022, the rich-of-use azset raiated to oporating leases was approaximataly
50,623,000 and 528,234 000, raspecivaiy. and £ recorded in the accompanying consehdaes belativg

staets.

Leass sxpanse is recognizad on o siraigni-ling basis cver the {em of the thase and praseniad 38 4 single
charge in the consolidaled siatements of operations. Duirng the years ended Bacamber 34, 2027 ana 20322,
CHE rgeordad approxmaiety 50278 00 aad 54,560 000, respacuvaly, n 9ase exponss, The weighisd-
averacy ramseining opasiing iesse e was 514 years at Decenehar 3%, 2023 Tha weighiad averaga
disceunt rate is .60,

A suminary of ture operaling lease pavmans at Sacembar 31, 20208 is as foliows:

£ sumisnary of matyridos for operating leasas ar Decamber 31, 2623 s 35 follows:

Tharesier
Totai lease paymans
Lass: BenoUel reprasenting interent ~ 5,633,318

Present walua of lease Fatditias <

MOYE 10 - LINES OF CREDIT

Comersions has abizinsd lwo ines of oradit, & revaiving kne of cradit anc & nonrevolving line of creds,
trare a financiat nstiution. The revohdng tne of credlt has availability of $7.500,000, howavar, of that
beiarce, $330,000 is resyricted as 2 letter of credit “or the workers comipensation insuranae policy, Thare
is o oLtsianding balanca on t+s ine of credil at Decernbiar 31, 2022, Coraersions’s nor-rayolving dna of
credlt has an avadlable borrowing imit of $11,250,000. There Is no slitstanding balance on this line of aredié
al Recember 37, 2022, Both finas of credit acorus intarast at a variable rate of Bloomberg Shorl-Tarm Baak
Yigld index rate plus 1 79%. The ines of eredit are securaed by a Negative Pledge agresment which will
ganrad on April 30, 2023, Managament did nol extend the finss of cradit after Anelt 30, 2023

tn oy 2683, Thopters obinined o ravolving line of cradit with 3 financiai institution. Thes line has avalability
of 57 50,0075 and wicurs mierest ot 2 fate of monthly simpia SOFM piuzg 1.45%. Ag of Dacembar 31, 20273,

{Contnued}



CHARTERS HEALTH SYSTEM. NG, AMD AFSILINTES
NOTES TC COMSOLIDATED FiMANGIAL STATEMENTS
Docemmber 31, 2020 angd 2022

BOTE 11 - LONG-TERM DEBT

A surminary of iong-tern debi and copitn) lease cidigations vs of Cocembar 31 s as foliows:

223 22z
Cliy of Tampie Terrage, Fiorioe Revenue Refunding Bend,
(Chantars Haalte Swstam Mojest), Seres 2047, wits
Ranions Bank aa sundhoider commencing Al 2017,
malsring Aol 2037, secured by sontgin essals of OHE
pringipzl MEWing 0 vendng amounis, intersst payablo
moathiy st 0 57% of ons rmonin simiple SOFR plaa £.12%,
{4 73% at Decombar 31, 20230 [Berias 5017 Bone. 5 282030 & 10,748 800
Cormanticnal laable loan, with Regions Bank as
bondizotdar, commeancing Aord 2317, marn iy
Decamber 2036, sacured Sy sertain a353is of SHS.
princlpal maiuring 1 vaning smounts, inerast payabls
monthiy at 067% of png-monib simpie SOFR plug 1.75%
£7.22% at Deceritar 31, 20231 dus thyotigh 035
fTaxahi= | manj. 13,258 U 13 ETL 004
Commnional wam foan, with Regions Bare, sommaneing
May 2023 secured bynarah asseis of CHE, prncpa:
TELINNG N VERG amcuniez nierest pavabie 2t t TE%
s aiesmaoeth zingls SOFR (5.41% at Danrmbar 21,
20235 due theough SWay 2027

7160049 -

3035338 24428 500
a8y current poriug of long-tern dait LA AN0.64R) JEANF AN
LBSE unEMorizead debitiss iancs nosts 1L

Tha agreemont uncanying ing boer lssves and e 2017 Taxable Loan a2 destribed abovs wers mind e
n May 2023 te shange the Obligated Group. Tha Stligated Grour now ing udss Chapters {ealth Paliiatve
Care. LLO, Chapters Wleaith Prarmacy, 1.0, Chaptars tealts Statfing. LD Chantars Haaits Home
Cansedt, ino., hosplee of Oieachobes, and Cornerstona Heath Sarvices, LLC. The addition waz to arde
Gomersionea.

The agresmants tindsriying the bond issuss ard the 2117 Taxabls Loan coscribed above comain
covenants thal provided for, among othar things, the maintanance of certain ratios, coaditions for i2eusnca
of additorl Indeblednesy and the tansferabilily of funds. Al Secomber 23, 2023 CHS way oot of
compliance with ceiaine finaicial coveramts, THS obtained & waiver from the Bnanciat neitution
subsagient to vear and. The Serisg 2077 Bond ard 2017 Taxshlz Loan are secured under = Masiar Trust
Inderture and Supplementai indeniures and are oollatersiizad by pledged revenues, aft rights, lides.
interests ahd estatus i and 1y all real propedty and the revenue fund as outlined in the agreamsnis.

(Cartinued)



CHRAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM. IMZ. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023 and 2022

HOTE 11 - LONG-TERM GEBT [Continusd)

ekl tssuzrce Costs: Debt issuanne costs are retied against the ralated obligation and amartized over the
wrm of fhe rsfaled obfigation. I conjunstion with $he issuance of the Beries 2017 Bond, 2017 Taxabie
Loar, 2023 Term Loan and 2023 Raynlver, GHS recordad debi issuance costs of aparmomately H185 004

Uramorized debt isscance oeste as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, was approdimaiely 3463 060 ard
333,000, raspecively, and is iroluaed in the non-current portion of Io:‘g ferm fabt in ine accomeanying
consciidated salances shaels, Amotizaiion expanse was approximataly 360,000 for ihe years andad
Devember 31, 2023 and 2022 and is inciudad In irderast in the anomnpanying Wnsolidated statements of
Cperalions

Dbt Materiles: Maturiies of iong-tarm dett and capitat lsase obligations aré 83 follows:

Sarjes 2047 & 2023
Bonds & Loans

2024 3 2200648
2025 2,284,357
2026 2,387,458
2027 6,985,007
2028 1,705,400
Theraaiter 14,402 451

$ 30,036,389

& ap Ay 5. LHS UlHizes iniersst -ale swap agrﬂrﬂﬂef‘ts o madify GH“ & FEDOELTE I
inte 3lo ek by con g & vostion of ita varlan's rate Eorrowings to a fixed-rale basis, thus redicing
\h@ ampa nt of Interssi-rate charges on fulure intarest sxpanee. Thess ag-asmants nvolve the receipt of
variable-rata payments amounts In eachange for fixedrats inieres! payments cover the life ol the
agrremeants withoul an exchangs of the underdyisg pringipie amount, In canjunstior with e Series 201/
Bond s 2017 Taxalls Loan, in March 2017, CHS enterad into wo Tlerest rale swap agresmenis with
Ragions Bank o convert a porlion of de varable-mate borrowings D a fixed-rale basis These swap
agraemshts matured an Apell 1, 2024,

CHE pays a fixed rate oF 1.45% and receives 2 vahable-rate paymeant bassd on 67% of SCFR for one swap
and rays a fixed rate of 2.162% ard recefves 2 variakie-rate payment basad on SOFR for the other swap.
At Becemeger 31 2023 and 2022, ths notional amount of these swan agreermans Intaled spprodimataiy
$22 876,000 and 524,428,000 regpactively.

HMOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

CHS sponsors nancouiibuiory suptlemental executive retirement plans (SERP] for 3 select group of
management or highly compersated emplovees. The plans call for benefits 1o be paid in a ivunp sum
amount ¢ the 48" day following separation from service 58 iong as the paricipant has attained the vesting
dales for employer-contrituled amouris. Employee-contmibuted amounts may be dislribistaed hased on a
4at of options nrovidad s the plans

{Continued}



CHAPTERS HEALTE SYSTER INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSCLDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dizcermber 31, 24923 ang 2022

MOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Toitinued)

Cistributions equal o 100% of the ameunt credited to ths padisicanfs accourt witl be mate to the
paiticivant ur beneficiary i the avent of totad and permaner: disabibly, death, terrmation due ta change in
the control of tra eraployer or fermination withaut nanse pricr to e vesting date. Tola! assets held to fund
the liability and (mal accrued Sabiines w e plans wers approzimately $2 117,000 and $1.851, 00 =}
Bocernber 31, 2023 ond 2022, respectively and are includad in othar assels andt oiher ioag-erm lizblities
i the acoomrpanving vonsolisated baisos sheels.

CHSE, in its sole distredon. may at any ime mase addinnal deposits of cash of othar propedy i iust with
iho plans’ lusies o augrment the principle 16 b2 held, administared, and dspogsd of by the Plans’ trustes
as provided ir the yust agreenient. Brpensses reisted to thesa pians wars agprosinataty 31,024,005 and
697 100 for the yaors sndad Denanber 31, 2023 and 2022, respactivaly

3 has zstablished a refiremant elan under Sectien 403(b) of the imernal Revenus Cods whereoy aligitig
amployess may alsct to defer a porton of tharr salary. Tha plan allows smgloyess ta made desosis o sall-
directed savings accounts ihrough payroll deductionz. CHE has the onden {o make discrationary
acnalscive conuibulicns fo- efigihta participati1g employees, zs wall as matching coninbuticns based Jpon
the amourt of eligitle compansaiion convibted by ths employss up o cerlain spacifed fimitations,
Empioyass vastin he employs’ discietionary nonelectiva cantfbuticns and matching conitibuabion ovar a
sixyear paricd. Participants’ forfeitures are ussd to offsat CHE's fulwre plan conitibulions,  SEmployer
contiblticns W ihe plan were approximately 32,247,000 and $1 829.00C for the vears snded Decemper 31
2023 and 2022, raspoctively.

Comerstone has establichsd arelirement pian under Soction 40300 of the Internat Revenue Code whereby
2ligibte smployaes mey aiect lo defsr o partion of their saiary  The nan Aliows ampicyess 1o make Geposis
to sell-diracted gawngs accounts rough payiol deductions. SHS has the opdon © make discrationary
nonelactive contributlons for efgiktle participating erspioyess. as wall 3z mistching coatributions bassd upan
the amount of giigihle compansation conddbutes by the amployse up 1o certain spacifiad dmitaticns.
Employees mist normaly work in cxoess of tvsniy houes 8 weel o participets in the plan ano over 1,000
hours 2 year ta vast i the employer's contribvtion. Empleyer contributions to the plan wers spproximatzly
524 506 fon he period of Aprt 1, 2022 throlgh Tecamber 31, 2022 and are inclugarn in salares and
fenafits on the wonsclidated statemenrts of operations, Cornerstong migrated (o the CHS plan on Octater 3,
2022

Hooe has estshiishad 3 relirement pizos oder Section 403(b) of the intaimal Revenue Code whereby
eligitle employees niay eiect to defer a podion of thelr salary. Two of the pians only allow for empioyes
contributions. Hope does not cantiibute to either of those two slans, The third plan Is & refirercent pian
under Section 2036} of the Inlemat Revenue Cody in whish etigible employees who are at leas: 24 yaurs
of age and have one year of service. This retitamant plan is saley furded by Flope, at the discieton of the
boaid of disgctors and s defenningd annusily. Empioyer convibutions o the zlan were approgimately
5738,00C for the peried of March 4. 7023 thinugh Decembar 31, 2023, ard are includad in seiares and
benalits on the carsnlidated statemants of operations.

Capital Caring has estaidishad a refiromont plan under Secticn 403(0) af the Internat Raverte (ode
whereiyy eiigible empleyaes may elect to defer a portion of their salary. Capital Curing ratches simployes
contritulicns doflar for doflar up o 1% of each sligiole employes's satary. Ernploryer contricuticns to the
plan wers approximataly 33538,006 for the pennd of May 1, 2023 trouge Decambar 34, 2023, ang are
incfuded in sataries and beneflis on tre consaidaled statements of operations.

{Contined)
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CHAFTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, NG, AND AFFILIATES
NOTES 70O COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATENENTS
December 31, 2023 and 2022

MOTE 43 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Comersloie Foundation was estabiished o axciusively fostor, prornote, suopcn, aevelop, and encgurage
the fungtions of Comerstona, U8 GAAP requires Cornerstone 3 1eengnize as an asset s interest in ihe
net assals of Cornersione Fuundalion, ana tn refiact in iis changes in not nssets the changes in the not
asscis of Cornarstone Faundation. Tolas rel geyels held by the Foundation as of December 31, 2627 ana
20737 amounted to 57925 200 and $5,9932 365, raanectively, and are cisssified as interest in net assts of
Cornersione Foundation on tha consaidated balance sheets and with dener resirictions by Somersicne
because Comersiona doss not control the timing or amoard of the canfribut:ons made by Corndrstone
Foundation. The change in banaficial indarest n the net assets of Carnerstone Foundation s recorged
wlithin e consolidated slatements of operations within the changes in net assals wilh gonor resivctions.

During the periad snted December 31, 2023 and 2022, Comersione Foundation made granis to
Cornersione totaling approcimately 31,500 006 anc $5,618,000, raspasctively o provide funding for caram
nrograms of Corneratons, Comerstone Foundation owad Comersione $838.833 and 51,482,303 at
Dacember 31, 2023 ans 2022, respecltivaly, Tor opersling expanass paid an Dormorstors Foundation's
bebal and unpsid grants 12 Comerstans. Such amounts are rodorded as due fom related party in the
sonsolidated balance shoets at December 31, 2023 snd 2022,

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

claims catated to orofessional labiiily, amployment or ether mallers. CHES maniaics commercial nsurancs
on 2 clairs-mads basis for redical malpractice. a3 well 35 othar commerdial inditrance 10 cover gensra!
Yabifities. Manegement is not 3were of any threater s claims that are rot coverad by its sk management
programs ar thal. in tha ewent of an adverse oucams, wouid have a significan: 'mpact on the financial
rosition of CHS.

Workers [ iy OHE msiraing workars vomgensstiion nsuraroe hrough a captive ingsurance
corngany. Accruais for workers' compensation claims havs been estimated by managemeart based upon
ioss runs znd olaims data proviced by the insurenee sotpany. Ssiimaad acovusls for workers'
comipensation claims fotales approximalely 31,289,000 ard $632.020 ai Decerbaet 31, 2023 and 2027,
respeclively. and aqe nclkiac o accrusd smpinycs compensziion end relaizg Senefits i tre

scoamuanying consolinated halanes sheeis,

HOTE 15~ BELF.FUNDED INSURANCTE

dover Haatih lnsuiange: CHE is seif-inswed for emigioyes heaith care to provide meadical and other

1 care benefits to eligible employees and covered depandents. Reirsurance, covering cosis above
B0 000, for years ended Decembar 31, 2023 and 2022, per individual is masritainert thriugh a commearnial
axcess coverage policy. Estimated acoruals “or tlaims incurrad bet not vet reported totaled apsroumatealy
$2,052,000 and $1 420000 at Decamber 31, 2023 and 2022, rezpectively, ang are included it acerued
employes somosnsation and refalsd benefits in tha accomeanytng consoildated palancy shests, The
astimate of the fiabiify for unasserted claims ansing from incurred but not reported claims s based on an
anaiysis of historical ¢laims data. CHS incurred approximataly §20 210 000 and 310,812,000 In expense
related o sell-insired emmuloyen hadlin benells in lhe accempanying consofidaled stataimer:is of oparations
guring tha years ended Dacariner 31, 2023 and 2022, raspadiively.

{Crntimad)



CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTRM, NG, AND AFFILIATES
MOTES T COMSOLIGATED FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decamber 21 2023 and 2027

NOTE 15 - SELF-FUMDED INSURANGCE {Continuacl)

Comersione was sei-lnsured (or o portion of empoyes hezith benefits and migrated o THS plan o«
Gowobe: 2027, Fsiimated acoruais for claines incurres] bt not yet repanted tofzisd aporavimately 5559 000
at December 31, 2022 and are included n zooryed omployes compansation and relaiad bensfits in the
accompanying tonsolinaled balarce sheels. The astrnals of the lishiily for unassenes ciaims ariaing fren
‘rearrad Lul ned rapsrted ofaims s Dased on an anabysis of historica! claims data. Comersionse incuvrad
appeowimataly §3.370 004 in excanse reinted 2 selfinsured emcloyee health tarafiis in the ascg~panying
conselidoted siatements of operations during the panod of Aprit 1 itrough Desemipar 55, 2022,

Capttal Caring is self-insured for amployae bealin carg i provids medical and sther haalih care benefits to
silglbie emoluyees ard covarad depandants. Estimated accoruals for claims incureed bl o vet reported
wtaled approximatety $7229G0 af December 31, 2223 ang ams .?r.r..lur!e:d in arcrued amgloyes
compansation and reiated beoafits in the zocompanying consolidated baiamee sheets, The estimaie of the
lability for unasseriad claims arlsing from lncurred bul ol repaned deims is. b-ﬁ%cﬁ ar an anahysis of
historical claims data. Capial Carlng incurrad approaumately $3 179,800 in expense ralated tn aalf-insurad
gmpicyas health benalits i the accompanying sonsalideted staternents of oparativns durlng the pariod of
May 1. 2023 throtgh Deceimaer 27, 2023

MOTE 16 - LIABILITY FOR UNBAID CLAIME

Madicai cdans expenss and tha ablity i wepaid daims include estimates of CHE ohlinaticns for medina
rars sarvices thal nave been rgndarad by dird padties on senqalf of insured consumars a0 which the CHS
i3 contrantiaaly shilgated W bay (through the CHE capitstion arangaments), hut for which claims have
gither nol yel bear received, processed, of paid. ClS gevelnos estimatas jor medical care servicas
melrrad bud not reporisd (HBRART), which inciudes asiimatey for dsiims the! howe not boon received or fully
processes, utlizing actuarial models  CHS racoidsd a lakbibly for scoried thirt.party medical sapanss
clzims of approxmately $2 483,000 and 31,812,000 st Dacerbar 3%, 2053 ang 2072, rospachvaiy.

CHS purchases provider excass NSUTaNte o protect against significant, calastropric dlaims sxpenses
incurred on aehal of its patierts The total amount of provider excess insurance {;rem;uﬁrv was 34 DES 21 5
s B440.509 for tha years snled December 571, 2023 and 2022, respoctively.  The proviter sxoess
insurance pramiums iess raimbursements are repertad in medical claims expense in the gcn:chd'a*ey
statements of ops rarons Recoveres dug a-eincluded in capitated accounts receivania in the sunselidated
balance sheats. UnD provider ercess insurance deduciible for the plan was $17 52 and $17.79 par
mefnher ner monff for the years ended Dacgmber 31, 2023 ang 2022, respectively.

{Continuasd}
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MCTES TO COMSOLDATID FINANCIAL STATENMENTS
Decarnber 31, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 17 - HET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with denar resirictions are availabie for the Iolicwing purposes al Decembar 31

2023 2022

Banefoia! intermst in tha nat agsety of Comarmstons

Foiindation $ 0 FeRsa00 % 2.994.965
For the operaticns of Lilsbath Hosmoo 4,178,730 3,125,481
For the uperations of Good Shepherd Bospics 2,294,780 287,507
Far the cparations of Hemanda-Pasco Hosplos 1,605,032 A2 P00
For the opargtions of Capisa’ Carng Hosgice 3 482 5359 -
For the operations of Hope Heaithcare A3 5 -
Endowment ~ LifePath Hospics BA4 205 R44 605
Engoxment - Good Shepherd Hagaigo 166,284 168, D94
Engowmant — Capital Caing 2,481,515 .
Sor the operatlong of Charters Healih Foundation {56, 405; 447,789

& 237248 14,422 801

HOTE 18 - FAIR WALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FIMNANCIAL INSETRUMENTS

1.5, GAAP defines Tair vaiua as the prirs hat woit De recemes for anoasset or paid o rarefar 9 habilly
fan it price) @ the CHS s pringipls o most advantageous merkat for the gssat of labidity v an prdedy
transaction hatwaen market paricicants on ite maszeramant data. Tne falr vaiue hiararchy ranuires s
satity to maxmiza e Lse of sbservable inpuls Ao minimize the usa of uncbservable nnWEs when
mgzzusing foir valla. Thers srathras levalz of inputs hat imay be uked 10 measuee falr value as fnlinws:

Lavel 1. Guoled prices for ectcal ssasle or bahkilties in achve merkels that tha antity has the
ahifity to 2ccass as of the measurament dats. The feirvadues of cash and cash agquiva 8nis. monay
markat funds, mutual funds, scady secuities, and real estate funds are determired by obiaining
quedsd prices on nationaily recognized securitos exchariyes.

Lavel 20 Swnificdn: oher observable inputs olher than Level 1 pricas sush as quotad prices far
shmilar assels of liabiliies; quetsa orizes in markats thal are nol aciive; of ather irpuis et are
observable or can be corroborated by obssrvabie marset data.  The fair vaties of CHI's
govermant debl sacurites and corporaie Londs ave determined by matrx pricing, a marker
metrod, which is a mathematical fgonnfoue widely ssed in ihe Industry 10 valus debt seourities
without relyirg exciusively on quoted prives fur the specific scowriies bat rather by relying on the
securitios’ relationship to othar Denchmark gquotec senuritiss, GHS's dervalives, which e
comprised of two interest rate swap 2greomeants, are also reportad al fair value using Levet 2 inputs
OHS ohtained the fair value from a financial instiwtior which utilizes interna! models with
ubsarvabie market data rputs tg estimate the valua oF this instrumen! (market approach valuaiion
techinjales),

(Cewrtineed}



CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC, ANDG AFFLIATES
NOTES TO COMSOLIDATED FiNaMCial STATEMENTS
Uecemoer 31, 2023 and 20622

MOTE 18 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

ieval 3 Hignificant uncbeenvable inputs that reflect 4 reporling eniity's swn agsumptions about the
assumpiions that market particicants wonild use in pricing an asset or isdility.  The mtziest in et
assats of Comerstone Foundation is based an the underlying asssta of Comarstone Foundation,
which are not redaematia upon request by Comersione o CHS, The mierest in net asseta of
Comersione Foundation is fargely composad of undarivieg investments $hat have ohsernvable
mouts ane market activity alfewing tor pricing based on the marksy prcas of the fHems in the
inves.ments (market aporoash valiation techniqua).

is many cases, 3 valudlion lechriqua used to maasure fair vaius includes inputs from muliple levels of the
falr vaiue hisrarchy. The lowest ievel of significant input datermines e placement of the enfire ir value
rEAsUrermnant 0 tha hisrarchy.

The fofiowirg tables prasant the financial netrumants carsiad at fair valug on a recuring basis as of
Cecambar 31, 2023 and 2022, by valuation higrarcky, all of whish wers based on lha market approach,
whith usas prices and other refovant information generatad by market ransactions irvolving idaniical o
rornparabls assets,

Aasets and lishifties meastred o 8 racing 5Asis arg as follows:

Foor Volng Rl

w1
Aggeis
Aseets imited as 1o use:
oash and cash squiatenls B OB.B29801 & -3 #2550
rloney market flards 1,853,565 - :

& o

R AR
For LG

Mutizai funds
Total assely limited ag i0 e

[ VR
WL N

[

InEstimants
Cazn and cosh egunalants 855,729 880 725
Meney rmraret funds 3,252,303 - « GR35
Li.§. govemmant sgencics 1,527 559 - 1,227 554
Civborate bonds . 51,281 544281
Loty mutal funds T8 2472, 79 - 4,242,754
Bond mutual funds SR 03 802057
Conrmodities muteal funds 1,423 435 : - 142747
Foal esiate fund th 174 {134 - - 18175
Equity securiliss 1,040 474 - 1,0%
Toiai inue_ﬁtments_ __"._Oé?_g‘fﬁ.? ?;5"3,3*’;{7 o

nleresl cale swap agresmenis

wfd 8z

intereal in fiet assets of

Corpersions Foundation o - lE2saae
Totai assats B1i7.290352 § 2801882 § 7925300 $127,93

(Confinusd}



CHARTERS MEALTH SYSTEM, iNC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
Dacarnbar 37, 2023 and 2022

MGFE 18 - FAN YALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conbinued)

‘-a|r Mate Moaguiomend ot LeL embyor 31 2022

T Lawi2 Lovei 3 T
A55els
Assols imiled g o ase
Tagh snd nash aquivalerta T 2453844 F 3 & 34514844
Money market funds BOOG7 . - GO D497
piudual e L Aeszes e - 1926288
Toial asaeis limited as o vse 5241097 e 5.2il 27
frvesimenis
Cash and sash equislents 1.780.247 . - 1,730,247
floney mahet unds 7420138 - . 74132
L5 government agonties - 573,813 A73 813
Curgorsts bonds - 253,350 - 258,240
Eguity muiual fands 70095 gAY - . T1.095 287
Bord mutual funos & 816 R - - B.E18.080
Corpinodilmg mwdul fnos T A03 Y - . 1,500,874
Foal astele Kind 047 47 . - 543 147
Equity securfiies sgsuet - - sdueEl

332 20 203

Tors mvess imanis

Interast rate swab anreamonts i o ETREEY o | 6875387
Infarest 0 rot assats of

Coimarsione Foundation R T - 5.6, 355

Total assels 1!';5 765 4;"‘ 810,085 & ~ F '5':'? 3"“‘ {Jﬁ

A recanciistion of begnning and EI!‘JIEI'IQ balances for Org;a:‘!i;‘atio’ﬁ.'a fair valile Mmassuremanis usinglave
k-] =
3 .DU{B in an foliows:

nlarest in Net
Assaly of
Comerstons Founds

Asces at sanuany 1. 2 4
Ghar ce ininterast im nel sagets of
Samerztone Foundatian

Azsets at Dacamber 31, 2023 3’:

(Continued}



CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSETEM. I8G. AND AFFLIATES
NOTES TO SONSQLIGATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decernber 31, 2023 and 2007

HOTE 19 - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The cohguiidated financiai siaternonts reporl cerlan calegories of axpenses that are ailrbuiable 1o more
than one program of supporting furctinon. Trherafore, thesa axponses ~aquire allocaron on 3 reasonable
bazie that s consistzndly appiad. The expenses that rre aliozated imclude depraciation, irterest, and
Socupsncy, which are gliccated on a square-foolage basis, as well as salariss ang benefils, which are
glocated on the nasis of estimates of tire and effnrt.

Year endec December 31, 3023

Salarigs ancd herofits

Purchased serices

Gurable medical aquipment,
sunplies arel drugs

Medica! oinims expense

insurance and othar

Deprsciation and amortization

terest

Afiiatron expenses

Year ended De

Saisnes snd beneiis

Purchasad sendces

Durabie medizal aculpmsnt.
sunpliss and drigs

Madizal 2l2iMs expense

Meuranca and other

Deoreciation ard amedization

Interest

Afitizuion expencas

Program

Fa A4G A7
32857 V14
87 o spd
T 145 640

214 514

§ 482,573.072

:

Management

T E883822
1,194,317

ELREAT

S AF

W2,
TS
F A
Bl BT

§

L.788,112
932 387

2,032
£33,001
10NN
217,823

39,971

Frogiar
Reniges

3 145,224 (5K
21,617 084
15,885,746

24,912 807
35,655,769

Manogamant
and Genersd

35,68 945
483,010

Jada 3
9133754
L LEE BiRG

HOE O

3 40,818,903

o

e

9.418.649

Fiadrgising

2,837,175
267 368

Totsi
Expenses
2023

% 311,988.178
46 B34, 869

§ 505,040),558

Txpenges

2022

3

184, /45 108
F2,342 457

15.805 746
24,512,807
40,909, 729
2,183 753
1,063, 8

375,000

§ 275,48, 4568

L
L



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CHAPTERS HEALTH SYETEA INC. AHD AFFILIATES
OBLIGATED GROWF BALAMCE SHEET
Dacerroar 39, 2022

{Continued)



CFAFTERS MEALTH BY3TER, [HS, AND AFFILIATES
GELGATED GROLP BALAMCE SHERET
Tacamber 3T, 2037
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CHAPTERS HEALTH 5YSTEM, i
CONBOLIDATING BALAMI
Decanber 31, 2023

AND AFFILIATES
SHEET
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CHAPTERSD HEALTH SvETEM, [T, AND AFFILIATES

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
Decambar 31, 2023
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CriAFTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC, AND AFEILIATES
GRLESATEND OROUF STATEMENT OF OPERATIONSE
Year gndes Daceselar 31 3053

See acuiinpuinang motes o consclidmad fnangia) siglemarns



CLAPTERS HEALTH BYETEM, INC. AND AFFILATES
CONSOLILATRG STATEMENT OF OPZRATIONS
Yaar endad Dacambar 31, 2023

Bew guenrepanying independeri audilory pepon,
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CHAFTERS JEALTH SYRTEM MG, AMD AFFILIATES
QRLIGATED GROUP STATEMENT o3F CHANGES N NET ASSETS
“aar anded Coczmber 31, MY
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CHARTERS REALTH B 3 HIATEES
CNECADATING STATESENT OF CHANGES 1M NPT ASSETS
egr anzod Docwmber 31, 3
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CHARPTERS HEAL TH SYETEM, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTE TO CONSGLICATNG FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Year anded December 31, 2523

MOTE 1 - COMBIOLOATING DETAIL

'i'hx., arcorapanying consofidating beiance anect gny conselidaling statemant of operativns raflact the
fnancial positicn and aperations ann changes in nei assets of Chaniers Heatth Systein, fnc, (GHE f{]ﬂd
its mejar onerating entilies,  Tha amounts included 'n CHU are comprisad of CRUL Assurty Diect
Confrzcting Eniity, Ing., ard siminations botesan the two companies.

The amounis inciuda in other wihin the Ohligated Groep ndludes: Chapters ~ealih Pailiative Care Lid,
Chiaubars Health Pharmacy, LLC, Chaplers Health Staging, LLG, Chapiers Health Hreme Connect, s .
ridspice of Ckeachobee, and Domarstong Heslth Services, LLC
The amounis naludad in Capltal Carlng includes: Gepital Sarirg Heaith and Caplist Hosnios
The amaums ncluced in other that 2re not in tha Chilgaied Group are comgilsed of Alcars Wadical of
Fiovide. Gare Partrars, LILO, Achleve Home Cars, LLC, Capltal Saring Haalth, Capital Patiative Cars

Consuitants, Cagital Caring Stay 21 Home Servicas, Inc . and Capltal Cating Advanced linass Sarvicgs,
ire.

See accompanying mdepandant auditor's repert.

dd.



Chaplers Health System, Ine. and Affiliates
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of August 31, 2024

Consolidated Consolidated Cronsolidaied
8731424 7:31/2024 12/31°2023
Fsuanciaf fndicaiors
Curent Ratio 1.53 1.63 LU
Debt o Lguity Ratia 0.47 48 038
1days ("ash an Hand La8 |09 L8
Days in AR k] 95 53

Asyedy

Corrvent 1ssets:

Cash ond cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Patient Aceninis Receivable, not
Other Clurrent Assels

Total Currene Assers
Long-term investments, net of current portion
Property and eguipment | net

Other assets

Total Assets

40 087,196
THIE,130
54,139,493
26,436,609

§33.060 604
10,309,543
49,772,013
37,946,889

$33.8:8,103
11,634,375
43,623,345
41,738,529

$137,601.428

151,149,030

3130834352

. hifiniey g Nef Ayveie

Current liabilities:

Accounis Payable and Acerued Expenses
Acerued Pailent Cuwe Expenses

Accruied Employee Compensation and Benefits
Other Current Tiahikities

Toral Curren: iabilities

Long-term Dredt, net of currant portion
{ther Long-term Liabiiities

Total 1iahilitics

MNet assets:

Without donar restriction
With doner restriction

Toral Net Assets

Total Liahilities and Med Assets

109,507,537 105,221 448 103,257,558
140,777,226 160,767,923 74,962,291
03,614,175 94,230,259 95284743
$501,500,368 ¥311,308,086 244,338,043
§i7,934,131 $22,003.002 $21,639 490
in273727 i6,233.0 50 13,049 459
30,185,377 27,913,742 25,058 246
L 22,908,629 25B10.55( 23,952,039
87.303,863 62,862,494 83,680,284
25.909,772 206,003,282 27373077
44,725 026 47,356,730 47 330 186
139 439,503 166,312,506 138,282,547
170,075.220 373,587.545 314,060,052
21,485,583 21,468 225 21,096,344
341,560.802 345 036,174 136,036,396
$301,500,363 3511.368,480 $494,338.943







Chapters Health System, Tne. and Affiliates
Consoelidaicd Balance Sheets
As of August 31,2024

Consolidaled Consclidated Caonsolidated
8/31/2024 Fi31:2024 12/31/2G23
l Finnncisd fndivatory |
Current Ralio .58 I 63 1.0
Treht to Fquity Ratia 0.47 0.A8 .38
Diays Cush on Hand LOR 1G9 118
Days in AR 63 o3 35
Aszery
Current asseis:
Cash and cash zsquivalonts 549 087106 353,060,604 B33,818,103
Shart-taim Invesimenrs 718130 10.36% 543 14,634,375
Patient Accounts Receivable, nel 54,134 493 49 7720143 43 A23 345
Other Current Assers 26,450 6040 37946889 41,758,520
Totak Currcnt Asacts __ S137601.428 L121,149.050 F130.834.332
T.ong-lerm investments, net of current portion 149,507,337 105,221,448 1073 257,556
Property snd equipment | nes 160,777,228 160,707 923 164,561,291
Oiher assers 93014175 B4 330 259 g5 284,743
Folal Assets 8501500363 F311,308.640 $494,338.943
Eiwhititios nasf N7 Assefy
Current labilitics:
Avcoun's Payvable and Accrued Expenses Fr7.ws4131 $22,905,002 £21.639,490
Accrued Patient Care Txpenses 16,275,727 16,233,150 13,043,489
Acerugd Empioyee Compensation and Benetits 30185377 27,913,792 25,058,246
Other Carrent Liabitities _ 22008629 23,810,350 23,923,059
Tutal Cuvrent Lightities #7.303 803 Y2,802.494 B3.680,284
Long-term Debt, net af current portion 23,809,772 26,093,282 29372077
Other { ong-teem Liahilities 46,725,926 47,356.750 47.230.086
Tudal Liuhilities [59.935 563 166 3102406 158,282,547
Net assets:
Without donor restriction 320075220 313387945 314,960,052
With donor restriction 21,485 583 21,368,229 21,096,344
Tetal Ner Aszels 341,560,802 345 0536474 336,056 396

Total Liahilities and Nel Assets $501,500,365 S511.368,680 $494,338,943




CHAPTERS DRAFT 10/2/24

SCHEDULE 5.4(b)

CHAPTERS CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY OR METHODOLOGY

None



CHAPTERS DRAFT 10/2/24

SCHEDULE 3.5

CHATTERS PROCEEDINGS AFFECTING TRANSACTION

None



CIIAPTERS DRAFT 107224

SCIIEDULE 5.6

CHAPTERS REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

None



CHAPTERS DRAFT 10:/2/24

SCHEDULE 5.7

TAX MATTERS

None



CITAPTERS DRAFT 10/2/24

SCHEDULE 8.4

CHAPTERS PRE-CLOSING CONFIRMATIONS FROM GOVERNMENT
AUTHORITIES

Change of ownership filings with the California Department of Public Health and the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.

‘Waiver or approval by California Attorney General

Material change transaction filing with the California Office of Health Care
Aftfordability



Exhibit 2.2A to Affiliation Agreement dated October 2, 2624
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Hospice Fast Bay

{Chapters Health System, Inc. and East Bay Integrated Care, Inc. d/b/a Hospice Fast Bay)

See attached



Secretary of State

Business Programs Division

Business Entities

1500 11th Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

P.Q. Box 944260, Sacramento, CA 34244-2600

Business Entities Submission Cover Sheet

For fastest service, file online at Hizfielnline sos.ca gov,

Instructions:

Complete and inciude this form with your paper submission. This form will not be made pait of
the filed document.

Make all checks or money orders payabie to the Secretary of State.

in-person submissions {exciuding Statements of Information) $15 special handling fee Do not
include a $15 special handiing fee when submitting cocuments by mail.

All submissions are reviewed in the date ordar of receipt, with online submissions given oricrity.
For updated processing time information, visit snaw sws ca guvibusngssidbe p opessing-dales,

To obtain a certified copy, include certificatian fees with your submission.

Note: All correspondence related to your submission will be
sent to the name and address on your check or money order.

Contact Person (Please type or print legibly):

First Name:

Phone Number: (81 %) 222'81 87

Dale We__bber

Last Name:

v dale webber@bipc.com

Entity Information (Please type or print legibly):

Entity Name:
Entity Number {if applicable):

Comments:

EAST BAY INTEGRATED CARE, INC.
0902832

Subimission Cover Shaat (REV 03:2024)



Secretary of Stafe
Business Programs Division
Husiness Entities, 1500 11th Sireet, Sacramento, CA 95814

Restated Articles of incorporation
of California Nonprofit Corporations

A corporation may restate in a single certificate the entire text of its articles as amended by filing an
officers’ certificate or, in circumstances where incorporators or the board may amend a corporation’s
articles pursuant to California Corporations Code sections $81% and 5815 (public benefit and
religious corperations), sections 7811 and 75815 {mutual benefit corporationg) and 12561 and 12305

{general cooperative corporations), a certficate signed and verified by a majority of the
incorparators.

To restate the articles, it is necessary to prepare and file Restated Articles of Incorporation in
compliance with California Corporations Code section £813 (public benefit and religious
corporations), section 751% {muiual benefit corporations) and 12510 (general cooperative
corporations),

A sample mesting statutory requirements for most filngs is attached The sample may be used as a
guide when preparing documents by making modifications as necessary to meet the specific needs
of the corporation. Flaase refer to the above referenced Casifornia Corporations Code sections prior
to medification.

Fees

The fee for flling Restated Articles of Incorporation is $30.00. In addition to the filing fee, there is a
non-refundable $15.00 handling fee for processing documents delivered in person {drop off) at the
Sacramento cffice.

-ales,

For current processing dates, go to winy S6E.02.g0viDusiness e o
Copies

Upon filing, we will return one (1) uncertified copy of your filed document for free, and wilt certiiy the
copy upon request and payment of a $5.00 certificaiion fee at the {ime of submission.

Submission Cover Sheet {Optional)

Complete and include with your paper submisswon, This information will be used to communicate with
you about the submission, if needed. This submission cover sheet will be treated
as correspondence and will not be made pant of the filed document.

REST- Nanprofit Information (Rew. 052022 2022 California Secretary of State
zfeeline 505 ¢




Restated Articles of Incorporation of California Nonprofit Corporations

Instructions

The attached sample can be used as a guide when drafting Restated Articles of Incorporation.
The certificate should be typed following the instructions set forth below.

Restated Articles of Incorporation are most often made by the president and secretary of the
corporation and for that reason the sample has been formatted using those officers. f the
document wil be signed by officers other than the president and secretary, or if the sample does
not adequately cover the needs of the corporation. documents must be prepared with
modifications to meet the specific requirements of the corporation. Please refer to California
Corporations Code sections 5810-5820 (public benefit and religious corporations), sections
[BI2-7820 (mutual benefit corporations) or sections 12500-12310 (general cooperative
corporations) prior to modification.

NOTE: If the corporation has not yet filed a Statement of information (Form Si-100) pursuant to
California Corporations Code section 8210, 5210, 9660 or 12570, the Restated Articles must
retain the name and address of the initial agent for service of process, and if listed in the
original Articles of Incorporation, the initial address and mailing address of the corporation
and the names anrd addresses of the initial directors exactly as listed in the original
Articles of Incorporation. |f the corporation has filed Form S1-100, the Restated Adicles cannot
include the name and address of the agent for service of process, the street and mailing
address for the corporation, or the names and addresses of officers and directors. Note: To
update our records to show the cumrent name and/or address of the agent for service of
process, the street or mailing address of the corparation, and/or the names and addresses of
the officers. you must file the Statement of information. To file a Statement of Infarmation.
go to pizlilelniice sos.ca gov.

» Paragraph 1 - must set forth the current name of the corporation exactly as the name is of
record with the Secretary of State (including punctuation and abbreviations), and the Entity
{File) Number issued to the corporation by the California Secretary of State at the time or
registration,

= Paragraph 2 — must set forth the entire text of the Articles of Incorporation, as amended.

« Paragraph 3 - must state the amendment and restatement has been approved by the board
of directors,

+ Paragraph 4 - must state the amerdment and restatement has been approved by the
required vote of the members, If the corporation has no members separate from the board of
directors, member approval I1s not required. Mowever, the cedificate must state the
corporation has no members.

DO NOT include both #4 paragraphs when preparing the document.  Use ONLY the
applicable statement,

» The certificate must be dated, signed and verified by the president and secretary. Each

person's name and title should be typed directly below their respective signature.

IEST- Munprafit instructhons (Rey. 33/2032) 2027 Califarnia Secretary of State
nifleOrline so3. 08 gov




Sample

Restated Articies of Incorporation

The undersigned certify that:

1. They are the president and the secretary, respectively, of NAME CF
CORPORATION; . a Califormia corporation, with Caifornia Entity
Number (SECRETARY OF STATE ENTITY NUMBERL

2. The Articles of Incorporation of this corporation are amended and restated to
read as follows:

(HERE TYPE THE ARTICLES AS AMENDED AND RESTATED)

3. The foregoing amendment and restatement of Articles of tncorporation has
been duly approved by the board of directors.

| NOTE

' .Choose only 4 The foregoing amendment and restatement of Articles of Incorporation has
. one of the #4 been duly approved by the required vote of the members.

. statéments

: D'_O'Nd‘r_usg OR

s ‘BOTH

 STATEMENTS | 4. The corporation has no members

We further declare under penaity of perjury under the laws of the State of
California that the matters set forth in this certificate are true and correct of our
own knowléedge,

DATE.
{Signalure of Prosident)
(Tvned Name of President), President
{Signature of Secrefary)
{Tyvped Name of Secretary), Secretary
REST-MNonprofit Sample (Rev, 03720122) 2022 Caiifornia Secretary of State

alreliihe 508, Dagoy



CLHAPTERS DRAFT 941024

AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF

EAST BAY INTEGRATED CARE, INC.

The undersigned certify that:

I. They are the president and the secretary, respectively, of Last Bay Integrated Care, [nc., a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation, with California Entity Number 0902832,

2. The Articles of Incorporation of this corporation are amended and restated to read as follows:
ARTICLE 1

NAME AND ADDRESS

The name of the corporalion iy Last Bay Integrated Care, Inc. {the “Corporation™). The
street address of the Corporation’s principal oftice and the Corporation’s mailing address 1y 3470
Buskirk Avenue. Pleasant [1il], CA 94523, or at such other location as may be approved from time
to time by the Board of Diractors with the consent oof the Sole Member,

ARTICLE 2
PLRPOSES

The Corporation 1s orgamized exclusively for cducational and charitable purposes within
the meaning of section SU1{(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (the ~Code™),
or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law and is not tormed
for pecuniary profit or financial gain. The Corporation is authorized to perform any lawful act or
activity tor which nonprofit public benefit corporations may be formed under the California
Nonprofit Corporation Law, California Corporations Code § 500 et seq, Notwithstanding any
other provision of these Anticles to the coatrary, the Corporation shall not have or exercise any
power which would cause it pot to quality as a lax-cxempt organization under scetion 501(¢)(3) of
the Code, nor shall the Corporation engage directly or indirectly in any activity which would cause
the loss of such qualilicauon. The purposes of the Corporation shall include but are not limited to
the following:

‘Lo cstablish and maintain services for the support and care of persons with or affected by
life-lirmting or advanced illnesses:

To promeote the phnlosophy that the quality of life is iinportant, and thar Hie should be lived
to its fullest extent by those persons with or affected by life-limiting or advanced iHnesses;
3. To promote understanding of the needs of persons with or affected by life-limiling or

advanced 1llnesses;

4. To obran public involvement and support by disseminating the aims and purposes of this
nonprofit corporation and its activities to the general public; and

b



5. To do all other tasks, including the conducting of all activities, necessary, suilable,
convenient, vseful or expedient in connection with, or incidental to, the accomplishment
of any of the purposcs set forth herein and in furthersnce of the Corporation’s participation
in the health system conducted through and govemed by Chapters Health System, Inc., a
Florida not for profit corporation, to the full extent perimitied by the Bytaws and the laws
of the State of California.

ARTICLE 3
MEMBERS
The sole member of the Corporation is Chapters Health System, Inc. (the “Sole Member™).
The Sole Member shall have and cxercise such reserved rights and powers related to the
Corporation as shall be sct forth in the Bylaws.
ARTICLE 4
DIRECTORS
‘I'he number of directors constiluting the Board ot Directors of the Corporation shall be as
provided in the Bylaws. The manner in which the Direciors are to be elected or appointed shall be
as stated in the Bylaws,
OQFFICERS
The officers and their manner of election shall be as provided in the Bylaws.

REGISTERED AGENT AND OFFICE ADDRESS

The registered agent lor the Corporation is Bill Musick. The registered office address tor
the Corporation 15 3470 Buskirk Ave, Pleasant Hill, CA 94523,

ARTICLE 7
BYLAWS

The Bylaws of the Corporation may be amended, altered, added to or rescinded only in the
manner stated in the Corporation’s Bylaws and only with the approval ol the Sole Member.



ARTICLE 8

AMENDMENTS

These Articles of Incorporation may be amonded only in the manner stated in the
Corporation’s Bylaws and only with the approval of the Sole Member.

ARTICLE Y

DISTRIBUTION LPON DISSOLUTION

Upon the liguidation. or dissolution of the Corporation, its assets, if any, remaining after
payment {or provision far payment) of all liabilities of the Corporation, shall be distributed to the
Sole Member il the Sole Member is exempt under Section 501{c)(3) of the Code at the time of
such distribution. If tne Sole Member is not exempt under Section 501(c)( 3} of the Code at the
time of such distribution, then such assets shall be distributed to one or more organizations
qualified as exempt under Section 5G1(c)(3) of the Code. Upon any liquidation or dissolution of
the Corporation, the use of the Corporation’s net asscts shall be subject to Sections 7.2, 7.3, and
7.4 of that certam Afhlistion Agreement dated , 2024, entered into by and between the
Carperation and the Sule Member,

ARTICLE 10

TAX EXEMPT RESTRICTIONS

{a} Probibitien on Private Inurgment. Notwithstanding any other provision of
these Artieles of lncorporation to the contrary, no part of the net carnings, current or accumulated.
or property of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributed to, the Corperation’s
riembers, dirsctors, officers, ar other private persons. except that the Comporation may pay
compensation in a rezsenable amount to its membiers, divectors, or officers for services rendered,
and upon dissolution, final liquidation or partal liquidation, may make distributions to its
qualifying members to the extent permitted by these Articles of Incorporation and applicable law.

(b} Prohihit:on on Dividends. Notwithstanding any other provision of these
Articles of Incorporation to the contrary, the Corparation shall not have the power to declare
dividends. The Corporation may, however, confer benefits upon its Sole Member in conformity
with its purposes and the Corporation’s Bylaws, so long as the Sole Member is an ¢xempt
organizatian under Section 301(c)(3) of the Code at the time of the confarring of such benefits.

() Limitation of Lobbying Activities. Notwithstanding any other provision of
these Articles of Incorporation to the contrary, no substantial part of the activitics of the
Corporation shall be carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise sttempting to influence legisiation.

{d) Prohiblion on Intervening in Political Campaigns. Notwithstanding any
other provision of these Articles of Incurporation o the contrary. the Corperation shall not
participate i, or interveng in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political
campaign on behalf ol or in opposition to any candidate for public office.




ARTICLE 11

INDEMNIFICATION

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Corporation shall indemnify any person who is
or was an officer, direclor, or employee of che Corporation, or who 1s or was serving at the request
of the Board of Directors or an ofticer of the Corporation as an ofiicer, director, or employee of
another corporation, partnership. limited lability company, or other eutity. Any amcendment,
modification or repeal of this Article 11 shall be prospective only and shall not in any way have
the effect of limiting or denying any rights of any such person under this Article 11 as in effect
immediately prior to such amendment, modification or repeal. The right to indemnification
conferred in this Article 11 shall not be exclusive of any other right which any such person who is
entitled to indemaification pursuant to this Article 11 may have or hereafter acquire under any
applicable law {(common or statutory). provigion of the Bylaws of the Corporation, agreement, vote
of the Board of IHrectors ol the Corporation or otherwise,

ARTICLE CONSOLIDATION

These Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation supersede the original Articles of
Incorporaiion of the Corporation and all amendments thereto.

ARTICLE 13

EEFECTIVE DATE

These Artictes of [ncorporation shall be eftcctive as of L, 2024,

3.The foregoing amendment and restatement of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved
by the Cotporation’s beard of directors.

4. The Corporation has no membecrs.

We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
matters set forth in this certificate are true and correct of our own knowledge.,

DATE. ___ .

—

, President

, Secretary




Exhibit 2.2B to Affiliation Agreement dated October 2, 2024
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Hospice East Bay

{Chapters Health System, Inc. and East Bay Intcgrated Care, Inc. d/b/a Hospice East Bay)

See attached
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Amended and Restated Bylaws
of
East Bay Integrated Care, Inc. d/b/a Hospice East Bay

ARTICLE I Name
The name of the corporation shall be East Bay Integrated Care, Inc. d/b/a Hospice Last Bay
(the “Corporation”), a California nonprofit public benefit corporation.
ARTICLL IT: Purpose
The purposcs of this Corporation are those stated 1in {Article 11 of tts Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation.)
ARTICLE HI: Place of
Business
The principal place of business of the Corporation shall be located at 3470 Buskirk Avenue,
Measant Hill, CA 94523 or at such other location appraved by the Board of Directors with the
conscnt of the Sele Member,
ARTICLE IV: Fiscal Year
The fiscal year of the Corpoeration shall be from January | to December 31, both inclusive, of
cach year.
ARTICLE V: Membership
The Sole Member of the Corporation shall be Chapters Health Systern, Inc., a Flonda not for
profit corporation, its stuccessors and assigns (the “Sole Member™}. The Sole Member shall have
such rights and powcrs as arc set forth in these Bylaws and as otherwise pormitted by
California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law (the “Law™) or any successor to the Law.
ARTICLE V'I: Board of Directors

SECTION 1. Composition

The Board of Mirectors of the Corporation (the “Board™ or the "Board of Directors”) shall consist
of the followng members (each individually, a “Director,” collectively, the “Directors™):
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A Sole Member’s President and Chief Tixecutive Officer (*“President/C"EO™), Chict
Operating Officer (“COO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CF(”) shall serve on
the Corporation’s Board ol Dircetors, by virtue of and concurrent with their terms
ot service as officers of the Sole Member.

B. Directors clected by the Sole Member (“Elected Directors™y shall be comprised
of not less than seven (7) duly elected Dircetors?, the exact number to be set from
time to time by the Sole Member. These Directors shall reside or work in the
service area in which the Corporation is licensed to operate as a hospice.

‘)
L

Ex ollicio, non-voting members of the Board of Dircctors shall include: the Sole
Member's Chief Business Development Officer (“C:BDO™), Chict Medical
Officer (“CMO"), Chief People Oflicer (*CPO™), Chict Information Officer
{"CI0™), Chief Compliance Officer (“CCO™), Vice President - Foundation
(*"VP-F"), the Corporation’s fixecutive Director, and any other person(s)
appeinted from time to time by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors.

D. The Sole Member may at any time increase or decrease the number of Dircctors
sitting on the Board; provided, however, there may never be fewer than seven (7)
Elected Directors, The Sale Member shall designate each Director whose
postiion has been climinated.

SECTION 2. Qualifications

Fach Dircctor shall be eighteen (18) years of age or elder, of pood moral character and reputation
and shall possess by reason of education, experience and background the technical skills and
judgment to be a dircetor of the Corporation.

SECTION 3. Election

The Board shall nominate, and the Sole Mcember may elect from those persons nominated by
the Board, Elected Directors at the annual meeting of the Sole Member. If the Sole Member
does not elect any person nominated by the Board, the Bourd shall nowinate other persons until
such time as the Sole Member elects new Elected Direclors, Any seat to be lilled by reason of
the replacement of a departing Elected Director or an increase in the number of directors may
be filled by the Sole Member from nominations by the Board whenever the vacancy or ingregse
OCLUTS.

SECTION 4, Term of Office
Al Directors clected by the Sole Member at the annual meeting shall hold office

until a successor has been clected or until curlier resignation, removal or death.
Bach term of an Elected Director elected at the annual mecting who is not an

' NTi: Parties & confirm correvt aumber. Adl dircctors i EBIC as of the closing have the ophon 0 eoTdinue as
dircctors, although term linziis will apply to service prior to the closiug.

TRETISI G 2



employee of the Sole Memboer shall consist of three {3) years or any portion
thereof.

B. An Eleeted Direclor who is not an employee of the Sole Member may serve no
longer than three (3) consecutive full terms and may be re-clected to the Board
after a one {1} vear hiatus following the completion of his or her service as an
Elected Director.,

C. The initial term of an Elected Director clected at a regular meeting two fill a
vacancy created by reason of the departure of an Elected Divector or an increase
in the number of directors shall cxpire at the next annual meeting of the Sole
Member at which Elected Directors are clected. Such a partial term will not count
as a full term with respect to term limits.

SECTHIN 3. Attendance

If an Elected Directer is absenl unreasonably from two {2) consecutive Board mectings, & ictter
may be sent asking that his or hor intent be clanfied. If an Elected Director is absent
unreasonably from three (3) consecutive Board meetings, the Elected Director may be removed
for cause from the Board of Dircetors and his or her scat on the Board declared vacant by the
Sole Member or by a majority vote of all Directars then entitled to vote with the approval of the
Sole Member. Fhe Elected Director who is removed and whose seat 1s declared vacanl will be
notified of such declaration.

SECTION 6. Resignation

A Director may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the Chairperson
of the Board of Dircctors and the President/CEQ of the Sole Member. Such resignation will be
ctfective on the date spectfied in the resigning Director’s notice of resignation, but if no ctfective
date is set forth in such notice, then the eftective date of such resignation shall be the date of
such notice of resignation. If a resignation is made effective at a laler date, then the vacancy
created by such resignation may be filled before the vacancy occurs, provided, however, the
new Director may not lake otfice until the vacaney occurs.

SECTION 7. Removal

All ex-officio Dircctors may be removed with or without cause at any time by the Sole Member,
An EBlected Director may be removed from the Board of Directors at any time by the Sole
Member or by a majority vote of all Directors then entitled to vote with the approval ofthe Sole
Member. Any Elected Director who is removed from the Board is not eligible to stand for
election again until the next annual mecting of the Sole Member. Any Elected Director removed
irom the Board of Directors shall turn over to the Board within 72 hours any and all records of
the Corporation in his or her possession.

SECTION 8. Vacancies

Any seat on the Board that becomes vacant through resignation, removal or death of an [flected

(]
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